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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chairman’s introduction

I am pleased to report further significant improvements in the operational and financial performance of
Thames Water Last year's 'best-ever' operational results have been surpassed by a considerable
margin and Earnings Before Interest, Tax, depreciation and Amortisation (“EBITDA") are up by 10 6%
The management team has done particularly well to meet the agreed leakage target for the fourth
successive year, overcoming the difficulties presented by one of the coldest winters in recent memory

There have been signfficant improvements in the services provided to customers Drninking water quality
remains among the best in the country, fewer properties than ever before are at nsk of receving low
pressure and good progress has been made in reducing the number of properties at nsk of sewer
fiooding These and other improvements to customer service have resulted in a reduction in written
complaints The recent opening of the new Operations Managemeni Centre, bringing together the
Company's water and sewerage operational control teams for the first time, will lead to further
improvements and efficiencies

The year has also seen important new infrastructure commissioned to ensure that the Company can
meet its customers’ requirements for water The Thames Gateway Water Treatment Plant will provide
significant additional supples of water from the tidal River Thames during droughts or emergencies, and
two extensions to the London Ring Main will improve the Company’s ability to move water around the
capital These developments, together with reductions in leakage that now total more than 27% over the
last five years, have improved the current water supply position But the impact of cimate change and
population growth, combined with the likely requirement to reduce some of the Company's existing
abstractions on environmental grounds, means that its 25 year Water Resource Management Plan 1s of
critical importance to the Company and its customers 1t 1s essential that the outcome of the forthcoming
public iInquiry into the draft plan provides a clear and sustainable way ahead

The 2009 Price Review by the Water Services Regulation Authonty (“Ofwat”) was concluded in January
The regulator's final determination (“FD") provided for less investment over the next five years than the
Company judged to be necessary, and allowed a lower Weighted Average Cost of Capital than the
Company believed appropriate  The Company will make £4 9bn of capital expenditure during the
perod, as a result of which custemers’ bills will nse by 3 1% above inflation It 1s perhaps inevitable that
the Company and its economic regulator will have a different view of the investment required to masntain
and improve the Company's infrastructure, and of the cost of raising the necessary finance There were,
nevertheless, some welcome mprovements from the draft determination

The FD sets a tough challenge for the Company and the decision to accept it without recourse to an
appeal to the Competiion Commussion was finely balanced After careful consideration, the Company
chose to accept the regulator's challenge and look forward positively In the longer term, however,
greater thought needs to be given to the balance between the need to make further investment in the
Company's ageing infrastructure, in order to maintain and improve the service the Company provides to
its customers, the amount customers pay and the appetite among investors for providing the necessary
finance

David Owens stepped down as Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") in November 2009 after three years,
during which the Company had delivered a step change in bath operational performance and efficiency,
| thank him for his contnbution Martin Baggs was appointed intennm CEQ in November 2009 | am
pleased to say that he was confirmed in the role in March 2010

Finally, it 1s with great regret that | have to report the death of a valued and much-respected colleague,
Stephen Box As an Independent Non Executive Director, Stephen brought a wealth of expenence and
wise counsel to the Board and was an exemplary Chair of the Audit and Risk Review Committee

%/,;__@i":—

Sir Peter Mason
Chatrman
10 June 2010




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer’s Business review

The following business review forms part of the Directors’ report

Business review
Introduction

Unless otherwise stated, all current year data included in this review 1s for the year ended 31 March
2010 (“20107)

Nature of business
Background

The Company 1s the largest suppher of water and provider of sewerage services in the UK, based on
the number of customers served It 1s one of 10 companies currently holding appointments as water
and sewerage undertakers' in England and Wales, with a further 11 companies holding
appointments as water only undertakers

in total, the area served by the Company occupies approximately 13,331 km? and encompasses
more than 9% of the area of England and Wales This includes London and extends as far as
Cirencester in the west, Dartford in the east, Banbury in the north and Haslemere in the south This
area has a population of about 13 8m people, which represents nearly a quarter of the total
population of England and Wales In approximate terms, the Company supplies 3 6m properties
(ust over 8 5m people) with water, and collects sewage from 5 3m properties (about 13 6m people),
ncluding 97% of households in its sewerage region

' A company that has been appointed to provide water and/or sewerage services to customers in England and Wales 15
known as an "undertaker” The Company's Instrument of Appointment - usually referred to as "the Licence” - was (ssued by
the Secretary of State for the Environment in August 1989




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer’s Business review (continued)

Highhghts

Over the last three years the Company has delivered a step change in both operational performance
and efficiency, meeting and beating the targets agreed with its regulators This has been achieved
by its “back to basics” approach and by setting clear corporate objectives

The Company reported 1ts best ever performance in 2009 across many areas of the business The
Company 1s pleased to report that it has beaten this performance in 2010 whilst delivering the
largest investment programme in the industry and improving EBITDA by 10 6%

Other achievements include

» Reduced operational expenditure despite the disruption from the cold weather experienced this
winter and the increase in contractor costs as the Company close out an Asset Management
Period (“AMP")

+ Delivery of nearly £800m of investment in the year
» The opening of the Operations Management Centre This will mean that, for the first time, the

Company's water and sewerage operational control teams will be under one roof This will
deliver improved service to customers through increased operational synergies

* A 14% reduction in written complaints

e Hitting the leakage target for the fourth successive year (a 27% reduction in the level of leakage
from five years ago)

e Completion of the UK’s first desalination plant (and other supply based initiatives), which has
enabled the Company to exceed its security of supply target for the year

e A reduction In the nsk of sewer flooding for a further 1,334 properties, and the Company remains
committed to reducing the nsk of customer flooding further

» A high performance for sewerage treatment work complhiance and the Company has put 100% of
sludge to beneficial use

* A significant reduction 1n interruptions to supply, and the Company's drinking water qualty
remaining amongst the best in the country

In total, the Company has achieved its best ever overall performance assessment ("OPA") score of
416 8% compared to 405 6 In 2009 (out of a maximum of 437 5)

2 The OPA score s still subject to ratification by Ofwat




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer’s Business review (continued)

Financial results

Financial Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

Performance Measure Yearto 31| Yearto 31
March March
2010 2009
%
£m £m | Movement
Turnover 1,623 8 1,558 2 4 2%
Operating expenditure ~ 609 2 614 5 (0 9%)
EBITDA * 1,052 5 951 9 10 6%
Total Capex Spend (see note 9)° 7825 082 4 (20 3%)

Turnover

Turnover increased by £65 6m, up 4 2%, to £1,623 8m reflecting real increases n price (‘K'), see
page 99, as agreed with Cfwat, together with increases linked to the Retail Price Index (RPI)
Turnover was £86 5m lower than assumed by Cfwat in the AMP 4 Final Determination (“FD"),
reflecting lower volumes due to weather conditions and changes in customer behaviour following the
economic downturn

Operating expenditure

Operating expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2010 has remained broadly in ine with the prior
year This 1s mainly a result of continued emphasis on dniving operating efficiencies, whilst ensuring
the delivery of the Company’s regulatory outputs The Company suffered in the prior year as #
increased the level of bad debt provisioning resulting from the :impact of the economic downturn No
additional provisioning In respect of the economic downturn has been deemed necessary in the
current year

EBITDA

The increase in turnover and the small decrease in operating costs have contributed to the 10 6%
improvement in EBITDA compared to the prior year The increase in tumover 1s detalled above A
further significant contrnibutor to the increase in EBITDA has been the increase in the activity in the
property market leading to an increase in profit on disposal of fixed assets of £29 7m against the
prior year

? Operating expenditure Operating costs, excluding depreciation and the Infrastructure Renewals Chargs (IRC"}
* EBITDA Eamings before interest and taxation excluding depreciation, amortsation and Infrastructure Renewals Charge

3 Total Capex Spend Total expenditure on tangible fixed assets excluding contributions received, see note 9 to the financial
statements




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer’s Business review (continued)

Capital expenditure

2010 has been a successful year for capital delivery with nearly £800m spent on capita! expenditure
This follows two years of annual expenditure of nearly £1bn and shows the significant level of
investment 1n the Company's infrastructure Despite this large programme, the Company has
delivered outputs efficiently as over the course of Asset Management Period 4 (*AMP 4") the
Company spent £7m below the FD Looking forward, the Company 1s already well advanced in the
planning of the Asset Management Period 5 ("AMP 5") programme with a cutting edge capital
delivery strategy firmly in place to ensure that the Company delivers all regulatory outputs at
minimum cost  With a clear focus, tight contracts and streamlined delivery process Thames Water
enters AMP 5 with the capability to become the benchmark capital delivery company

Treasury policy

The Company’s treasury operations are managed centrally by a small specialist team, which
operates with the delegated authonty of, and under policies approved by, the Board of Directors
The treasury function does not act as a profit centre and does not undertake any speculative trading
activity The key objectives of the funding strategy are defined by the regulatory regime within which
the Company operates and are to ensure that it meets all funding related requirements under the
terms of its Licence This includes mantaining cash reserves and access to undrawn committed
bank facihties in order to fund at least 12 months net cash flow {as discussed on page 20 Company
dividend policy extends this to a 15 month period) and to maintain an investment grade credit rating
(see “Debt financing” section below) as set out in condition F of the Licence

A key objective of treasury policy Is to ensure compliance with financial covenants, including interest
cover and gearing ratios, with the requirements to maintain hiquicdity and a balanced debt maturity
profile, and to ensure that at least 85% of the interest cost within the Securitisation Group, being
Thames Water Utilites Holdings, the Company and its wholly owned subsidianies I1s calculated on
the basis of either fixed or RPI-linked interest rates

Financial nsk management

The Company has an Executive Management Team ("EMT"), which recewes regular reports from all
areas of the business to enable prompt dentfication of financial and other nsks so that appropriate
actions can be taken

The operation of the Treasury function 1s governed by policies and procedures, which set out guidelines
for the management of interest rate nsk and foreign exchange nisk and the use of financial nstruments
Treasury policy and procedures are incorporated within the financial control procedures of the
Company

The Company’s operations expose It to a variety of financial risks that include the eflects of changes in
debt market prices, price rnisk, iquidity nsk, interest rate nsk and exchange rate risk

Denvative financial instruments, including cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps and forward
currency contracts are employed to manage the interest rate and currency nsk ansing from the
primary financial instruments used to finance the Company's activites Matching of assets and
habilties in foreign currencies 15 also applhed wherever prachicable The Company actively mantains
a broad portfolio of debt, diversified by source and matunty and designed to ensure the Company has
sufficient available funds for operations

The Company 15 exposed to commodity pnce nsk, especally energy price nisk, as a result of its
aperations The Company ams to manage its nsk by fixing contract prices where possible




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer’'s Business review (continued)

Financing

As at 31 March 2010, the Company had committed facilities in place with a syndicate of relationship
banks to the value of £1,105m, all of which were undrawn at 31 March 2010 In addition, due to pre-
funding activity undertaken in the final quarter of the year, the Company had £573m of cash on
short-term deposit This cash balance together with undrawn facilities will provide the Company with
the necessary hquidity to fund the operation of the business for at least the next twelve months

Debt financing

Debt financing 1s raised by the Company or through the Company's wholly owned subsidiary,
Thames Water Utlities Cayman Finance Limited Previously, debt had been raised through Thames
Water Utilities Finance Limited, another wholly owned subsidiary

Moody's Investor Service rates Class A debt as issued by Thames Water Utilties Cayman Finance
Limited, A3 long term with stable outlook Moody's also 1ssues a Corporate Family Rating for the
Secuntisation Group of companses, which stands at Baa1, reflecting the ability to issue Class B debt
beyond 31 March 2010 Standard and Poor's Rating Services rates Class A debt as 1ssued by
Thames Water Utlites Cayman Finance Limited at A- with a stable outlock The Standard and
Poor's rating was upgraded from BBB+ to A- on 19 April 2010 reflecting an improvement in the
operating performance of the Company Accordingly, the Company maintains an investment grade
iIssuer credit rating in accordance with the requirements of its Licence

Capital structure
Key features of the Company’s capital structure are as follows

s All debt 1ssued by the Secuntisation Group will be documented pursuant to a Common Terms
Agreement as part of the Whole Business Securitisation entered into in August 2007

* Untl March 2010, all debt 1ssued by the Secuntisabon Group was ranked In the same class
(“Class A") The ratio of Class A net debt to Regulated Capital Value (“RCV"} within the
Securntisation Group 1s mited to 75 per cent

¢« From 1 Apnl 2010, the Company and the Secuntisation Group has the option to issue
Subordinated Debt ("Class B") At the same time, there I1s an increase In the combined Class A
and Class B (together "Senior") net Debt/RCV ratio to a limit of 85 per cent

» Each Obligor (the companies within the Securnitisation Group) has entered into the Security Trust
and Inter-creditor Deed (“STID") with the Securnity Trustee pursuant to which Thames Water
Utiities Holdings Limited guarantees the obligations of each other Obligor under the finance
documents and the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries guarantees the obligations of
each other under the finance documents, in each case to the Secunty Trustee

* Following an event of default, the documents provide for an automatic 18 month standstill of the
claims of the creditors that have entered into the STID

Covenant compliance

Under the terms of its finance documents, the Company 1s required to comply with various
covenants such as interest cover and net debt to RCV  These covenants are measured and
submitted to the Security Trustee semi-annually and involve both actual data and forecasts and two
main ratios are discussed further below




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer's Business review (continued)

Covenant compliance (continued)

Adjusted Interest cover ratio (trigger. 1.3x) *: For the year to 31 March 2010 the ratio was 2 1x
{2009 3 2x) The movement in the ratio 1s due to an increased level of debt and resulting cash
Interest on that debt

Class A/ Senior Debt/RCV ratio (trigger: 75%)’* At 31 March 2010 the ratio was 68 3% (2009
72 0%) The decrease in the ratio 1s due to a combination of reduced debt drawdown as a result of
the smaller capital expenditure programme i the final year of the AMP and the impact of higher
infiatton feeding on the RCV

There are other vanations on these rattos, which the Company 1s also reguired to calculate to show
comphance with its covenants The Company i1s compliant with these ratios as at 31 March 2010

Regulatory KPls
The performance measures below are an internal split to enable management of the various

components of regulatory performance as discussed below The Company has seen continuous
improvement in the past three years and this year achieved its best ever OPA score

Performance Measure Components | Maximum | Yearto | Yearto| Yearto
OPA 31 31 31
Score March March March
(as 2010 2009 2008
defined by
Ofwat)
Walter service DG2 & 1250 122.2 120 9 1221
Water
quabty
Sewerage service DGS, 750 57.8 540 447
Flooding
incident
Secunty of supply DG4, 500 50.0 451 450
Leakage
and security
of supply
Customer services DG6,7,8,9 750 74 3 74 6 727
Environmental performance-Water Potlution 125 12,5 117 1256
incidents
Environmental performance-Waste Pollution 1000 100.0 993 1000
incidents &
sludge
disposal
Overall Performance Assessment 437.5 416.8 405.6 397.0
!IIOPA”!
Incidence Rate — accidents per N/a Nfa 59 67 83
1,000 employees

® A trigger event would lead to lock up which would mean nil distnbutions outside of the Secuntisation Group until resolved to
the Secunty Trustee's satisfaction Adjusted Interest Cover Ratio is czlculated as operating cashflow adjusted for expenditure
on depreciation and infrastructure renewals divided by interest paid

Ta tngger event would lead to lock up which would mean nil distnbutions outside of the Secunbsation Group until resolved to
the Secunty Trustee’s satisfachon




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer’s Business review (continued)

OPA

The OPA score 1s an important measure used by Ofwat to assess the operational performance of
the water and sewerage undertakers It incorporates all of the performance cnteria in relation to
each major activity that the Company needs to measure to ensure that it will meet the needs and
prionties of its customers in line with the Company vision “If customers had a choice, they would
choose Thames Water”

Regulatory KPIl highlights

Below 1s a summary of some of the key changes in the business that the Company has used to drive
its OPA improvement

Water Service and Environmental Performance

The Company has achieved its regulatory leakage target for a fourth successive year with
annual average leakage for 2010 of 670 MI/d, against the target of 685 Ml/d This 1s 29 MI/d
below the level reported for 2009 despite another challenging winter with temperatures well
below those for last year

The Company's dnnking water quality performance remains high at 99 98% Whilst the
Company aims to achieve 100% compliance, many of the failures recorded at customers’
taps are caused by the condition or maintenance of customers' pipe work and fitings To
that extent, 100% comphance 15 not within the control of the Company However,
management continue to sirive to achieve this target and Thames Water Utilities Limited 1s
one of the best performing companies in the industry

There was an event in February 2010 in the North East London area, in which minute traces
of two chemicals used in manufacturing were found In drinking water abstracted from the
River Lee These substances were enough for a small number of customers (relative to the
population served) to notice an odd smell and taste Adwvice from the Health Protection
Agency was that the levels of these chemicals in the water did not present a significant risk
to public health The Environment Agency also confirmed that there has not been any
environmental impact on the river

The Company's actions were to suspend abstraction from the River Lee while investigations
were ongoing, using the River Thames instead, and to adjust its treatment processes at
Coppermils Advanced Water Treatment Works in order to elminate the traces of the
substances in question

However, there 1S an ongoing Drinking Water Inspectorate investigation which could possibly
lead to a cnminal prosecution

Sewerage Service and Environmental Performance

Sewerage treatment works continue to perform well and have achieved 100% complance
with Urban Waste Water Treatment Directive (UWWTD) standards and are 99 4% compliant
with their Water Resource Act (WRA) consents This achievement should be seen In the
context of the Thames region having some of the most stringent effluent quality standards in
the UK

The Company had only two significant incidents arising from its sewerage assets

The Company has continued to deliver a reduction in the occurrence of sewer collapses
Collapses can cause flooding and pollution incidents The Company has carred out a
programme of sewer rehabilitation iIn AMP 4 to deal with sewers in poor condition before the
collapses occur This year the Company inspected some 930km of sewers as part of its
proactive inspection programme and as a result renewed or renovated a total of 11km of
sewers

with regard to sewer flooding, 1,334 properties had nsks reduced or mitigated by the
Company’s actions during 2008 This comprised of 867 internal properties alleviated (with
57 mitigated) and 345 external properties alleviated (with 65 mitigated)

9




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer’s Business review {(continued)

Regulatory KPI highlights (continued)

Security of Supply

The Company has again achieved its Security of Supply Index (SoS!) target of 50 for 2010
Of the four elements that make up the SoSli target (Hosepipe bans, Leakage SoSl, SoS| -
Absclue and SoS| - Performance aganst target), the Company has scored 100 in the SoSl
- Performance against target compared with a target of 85 This means that the Company
can now deliver to its customers the target levels of service for security of supply

Customer Service

The Company has delivered another year of high performance aganst the customer
services measures which ts reflective of the hard work that the Company has put in to
improve its customers’ overall experience of the Company

The Company's performance in responding promptly to customers regarding their queries
remained at a high level, with 99 9% resclved within five working days This 15 well above
Ofwat's ‘Good’ performance assessment of 95% and this mantans the Company's
performance ahead of its regulatory target In addition, this was despite the fact that during
this year the Company received 15% more billing enquines than in the previous year This
was mainly due to an increased number of enquines regarding ways of paying water
services charges which may be indicative of the effect of the economic downturn

Despite an increase in the overall metered customer base of c¢70,000 accounts, the
Company has produced is best ever performance, with 99 87% of metered bills 1ssued
during the year based on an actual reading

Incidence Rate — accidents per 1,000 employees

Management continue to focus on health and safety The headlines for 2010 show a significant
improvement in the Company's processes and complhiance capability

The Company has achieved a 12% reduction in reportable accidents across the business
Safeguard (the Company's online Health, Safety and Environment Management System)
was rolled out to all operating contractors This allows better reporting and recording of
health and safety performance data

Duning October 2009, Thames Water again ran a successful European Health & Safety
Week campaign, including a series of road-shows on over 20 sites, focused on risk
assessment and hazard identification

in May 2008, Thames Water was awarded the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents
{RoSPAY} Industry Sector Award for Occupational Safety & Health

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk overview

The Company's Risk Management process is integrated within the business, and 1s designed both to
identfy emerging nsks and to mimimise the adverse impact of emerging and existing nisks Each
business area 15 responsible for managing its nsks, and maintains a risk register, which 1s reviewed
regularly Significant risks are escalated and reviewed by the EMT and, ultimately, the Board of
Directors

The Company 1s exposed to a number of potential risks and uncertainties that could have a material
impact on its long-term performance These include

10




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer’s Business review (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Failure to meet regulatory targets — The Company 1s required o meet targets set by Ofwat, the
Environment Agency, the Dnnking Water Inspectorate and other regulators In order to achieve this,
the Company must continue to deliver cost and efficiency savings in ine with a challenging FD, whiie
maintaining and mproving operational performance Performance agamnst these targets 1s the
subject of frequent management review

Employee pension scheme funding — The Company operates two Final Salary penston schemes
In March 2010, the Company agreed a deficit repair plan, including increased employer contributions
backdated to April 2008 and increased employee contributions from April 2009 in the Thames Water
Pension Scheme, combined with a review of benefits Movement in economuc factors (such as
inflation and interest rates) over the financial year have increased the potential pension deficit, and
there 1s a nsk that the Company may be required to make further employer contributions to
safeguard members’ benefits

Faillure to maintain adequate funding arrangements - As at 31 March 2010, the Company has
adequate cash at bank and short term deposits of £579m and undrawn commuitted bank faciities
(£1 1bn) n place to provide hquidity as required The Company will renew £355m of committed
facilites before August 2010 The Company has been successful In raising new debt financing, with
£455m raised n the financial year to 31st March 2010 Significant falls in RPI could reduce the RCV
growth which creates further pressure on financial covenant headroom, specifically the ratio of net
debt to RCV ("Senior RAR")

Impact of the economic downturn — Aside from the potential difficulties in obtaining finance, the
Company i1s exposed to the risk of fallure by external counterparties {banks, insurers and contracted
service providers) and to increased nsk of customer defaults on payments and reduced
consumption

Future changes in laws or regulations — The Company I1s not funded by Ofwat for changes in
obligations that would affect the whole economy Consequently the Company may, for example,
have to meet the obligations resulting from changes in environmental legislation or Corporation tax
without recourse to Ofwat However, changes that are specific to, or are more matenal for, the water
industry may be funded by Ofwat as a relevant change of circumstance

Failure of a major asset — A faillure at one of the Company’s major assets could significantly impact
the safety of its workforce and the public, as well as interrupting supply to customers and breaching
environmental and regulatory targets The impact would be both financial and reputational, and as a
result the Company has a specific process to manage the 1dentified nsks

The effects of climate change and long-term changes in weather patterns — As the Company
continues to supply a rapidly increasing population, the effects of climate change could adversely
affect its ability to maintain its SoSl requirements Consequently, in additon to substantially
enhanced demand management measures, the Company 1s currently making provision for greater
network integnty and the development of new sources of potable water

Shortage of skilled labour — The shortage of available skilled labour in London and the South East
creates an environment in which the Company must compete with other organisations for staff with
the necessary skills, particularly engineerning, in order to deliver the capital programme agreed in the
FD and additonal major planned projects Failure to deliver agreed targets may result in fines,
intervention by Ofwat and less favourable future determinations

Managing increased competition in the water industry — As a result of the reduction In the
barriers to eniry to the water industry, the Company will have to meet the challenges posed by
aspinng new entrants and the resultant effect of competition on its pricing schemes and modes of
operation which could result in increased costs to customers Consequently, the Company has
engaged with Ofwat in the consultation process and the discussion of potential competitton models

11




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer’s Business review (continued)

Principal nsks and uncertainties (continued)

Impact of low inflation or deflation - In return for their capital investment in assets, regulated
water companies earn a retun on ther Regulated capital Value ("RCV"), see page 93, which I1s
adjusted by the RP| In times of low inflatton or defiation, the return on this Investment will decrease
relative to the cost of funding, reducing cash flow and shareholder value

Delivery of the Thames Tideway Tunnel — As an innovative sclution to the challenge of reducing
sewage discharges mnto the Thames, the design and construction of the Thames Tideway Tunnel
present a number of technical, financial and logistical challenges These include the need to identify
and secure a number of construction sites in central London, to obtain the planning consents needed
from London boroughs, to manage the inevitable disruption and to secure funding for the project

Transfer of private sewers— The proposed transfer of private sewers to the Company will give rise
to additional capital and operattonal costs which have not been funded in the FD Full details of the
Company’s obligations and the funding mechanism have yet to be clarified

FD and AMP 5
The key features

In November 2008, the Company was given its FD by Ofwat for the 5§ year period from 1 Apnl 2010
to 31 March 2015 The FD has been accepted by the Company Its key features are as follows

A 3 1% above inflation average increase in customer bills over the 5 year perod
An allowed Weighted Average Cost of Capital of 4 5% post-tax

Operating expenditure funding of £3,136m

£4,912m of funded Capital expenditure

A Capital incentive Scheme baseline ratio of 125 for water and 108 for waste
£631m of funding for the Lee Tunnel

Thames Tideway Tunnel funding of £256m

The Company will nvest over £4 9bn on essential work to improve assets over the next five years
Despite this significant investment, customers’ bills will nise by a total of only 3 1% above inflation by
2015, with the average bill still under £1 a day

The plan to deliver

As an infrastructure business with a requirement for investment estimated to be £4 9bn during AMP
5, the Company recognised that, to deliver the outputs effictently and to meet the demands of the
various stakeholders of the business as well as the challenges presented in Ofwat's FD, it would
need to iImplement a new business model focused on Asset Management This Asset Management
model was implemented at the start of the 2010 year and management believes that the Company I1s
now set up as it enters AMP 5 to deliver the significant capital programme that was agreed by Ofwat
in the FD

Alongside the development of this business model, the implementation of SAP will enable the
Company to deploy best practice, end-to-end business processes across its operations and provide
further operating efficiencies On 28 September 2009, the finance and supply chain work package
of SAP went live and it has been a very successful implementation The Human Resources work
package went live on 12 April 2010 and the early signs are very promising

Over the next five years the Company must develop increasingly sophisticated approaches to
running the business as the scope for effictency improvement decreases Information Services I1s a
core support function within the Company and underpins all of the business processes and resulting
operational performance
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Chief Executive Officer’s Business review (continued)

FD and AMP 5 (continued)
The plan to deliver (continued)

Throughout AMP 5 the Company will embed SAP software into all parts of the business SAP will
conbinue to introduce new processes that will improve the way the Company works, and will replace
a range of different systems with just one, making data more rehiable and easily accessible across
the Company

The Company currently uses Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) in a8 number of
ways to monitor and control remotely asset performance on networks and process plants for water
networks and treatment works SCADA 1s an enabler of the Company's current operational
efficiency and 1s part of wider plans for managing health and safety and operationa! risks The
Company 1s currently in the process of replacing and enhancing legacy systerns, which will enable 1t
to become even more efficient going forward

In addition, the Company s starting work on a project called Work Asset Management and
Information ("WAMI"} This 1s a far-reaching two year project that will transform the asset
management and operational planning process of the Company

One of the most iImportant components of WAMI| 1s a business-wide asset register which will be
Integrated with a geographic interface This means that for the first time the Company will be able to
see Its assets in one place - enabling it to record cost, nsk and performance data against its assets
For Operations, it will provide the Company with an end-to-end work management process, giving
Jomned-up planning, greater visibility of other teams' planned work and better assessments of how
proposed changes might affect other parts of the business

WAMI will be looking at the capture of data from the field, through to making robust risk-based
investment decisions, improving the way the Company schedules work for the its customers and
communicating progress while keeping the Company’s customers informed, every step of the way

AMP 5 Contracts

Following a fundamental review of the Company's strategy, in AMP 5 the majority of capital schemes
will be procured and delivered as programmes of projects, rather than by leting an individual contract
for each project This enables greater efficiency to be realised through the optimusation of the
programme, as well as increasing the accountability of the contractors for delivery of the desired
outputs Contracts have been awarded following ngorous market competition

For network reparr and maintenance services the Company has challenged the market to detemrmine the
optimum delivery model, and has awarded contracts for the whole five year period which will enable the
Company to reduce costs and improve operational flexibility and performance

Conclusion

The Company believes that these improvements will deliver significant benefits for customers and help
achieve its vision “If customers had a choice, they would choose Thames Water”

In its FD, Ofwat has set the Company a particularly tough challenge but there were some welcome
changes from the draft determination and the Company will now focus on the delivery of the agreed
plan Operational performance I1s currently at its best ever levels and the Company’s prionity 1s to
maintain these levels of performance over the next five years and beyond
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Chief Executive Officer’s Business review (continued)

Looking further ahead

The review contains a number of forward-looking statements that the Company believes to be
reasonable based on the knowledge and information available to the directors at the date of
preparation, but about which it 1s unable to give any assurance that they will prove to be correct
Such forward-looking statements involve a number of nsks and uncertainties and are subject to
change at any time In the event that such nsks or uncertainties materialise, the Company's results
could be matenally affected These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, risks
associated with the Company's operational performance, the regulatory regimes under which it
operates and the need 1o obtain planning consents and other authornisations for capital works

Strategic Direction Statement

In 2007 the Company published its Strategic Direction Statement, setting out plans for the next 25
years Whilst these plans remain adaptive to changes in legislation and environmental needs, the
Company stands by its key aims of delivering a high quality, efficient, sustainable, and affordable
service to its customers

Regulatory and market reform

The Company recognises that there 1s a major change agenda for the water industry, and wishes to
work In partnership with Ofwat to deliver cost effective solutions for customers whilst taking a long term
approach to the environment and industry financeability

it 1s crucial that water and sewerage services remain affordable, deliver a step change in customer
service, secure the services for future generations, and that the sector remains attractive to investors to
ensure access to low cost, sustainable finance

The Company looks forward to engaging with Ofwat and its stakeholders on how best to deliver benefits
to its customers through market reform

Climate change

Climate change 1s perhaps the greatest risk to the water industry in years to come As well as hotter,
dnier summers, the Company expects to experience more extreme weather events such as flooding

Clmate change will reduce the penod when the Company's groundwater sources can refill and will
reduce summer rainfall As a result, managing demand for water through activities like wider water
metering and water efficlency programmes to encourage people to use water wisely will be increasingly
important in adapting to the impacts of clmate change New sources of water will also need to be
developed along with leakage being mare sirictly managed

The increase in severe weather events will require the Company to adapt its sewerage system and
increase its flood resiience, along with bullding greater capacity into pipes, tanks and treatment works

The Company looks forward to engaging with its regulators in assessing future scenarios and ensuring
that it has the necessary investments in place to meet these future demands

Water resources

In August 2009 Defra called for a public inquiry into the Company’s draft Water Resources Management
Plan

The draft plan sets out how the Company will provide water for its customers between 2010 and 2035
The Company constders that it has produced the best possible plan, and balanced the sometimes
conflicting requirements of statutory duties and of economic and environmental regulation in the best
interests of customers and the environment However, the Company recognises that the plan raises a
number of important issues, which will be examined at the public inquiry

14




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Chief Executive Officer's Business review (continued)

Relationships and resources
Employees

The Company's employees have contmued to demonstrate high commitment and increased
engagement levels during a challenging year and most notably duning the severe winter weather
events of 2010

The People Strategy 1s now in its third year of implementation and continues to support the
transformation of Thames Water in developing a positive working environment that celebrates
diversity and inclusion During 2010, the Company has delivered the following key interventions to
support the business strategy and make the Company a great place to work

Implementation of SAP HR post year end
Graduate and Apprentice Programmes have continued with new Intakes and a new bursaries
scheme has been introduced fo support the talent pipeline

* Implementation of performance related pay for employee grades, Iinked to 2010 Performance
and Development Review ratings implemented with first pay award made in July 2009

*» New executive reward package launched for Extended Leadership Team with the design of a
new 5 year Long Term Incentive Plan linked to AMP 5
Review of Equal Pay
Delivery of new working patterns in the Company’s Customer Services Busmess Unit
TUPE arrangements for the outsourcing of Legal and for the transfer of Capital Delivery design
to contractors

» Introduction of a new Operations Management Centre in Reading bringing together existing and
new employees

Having a diverse workforce 1s crucial to enable the Company to reach its diverse customer base As
part of this strategy, the Company has developed a Diversity & Inclusion Strateqic Framework This
Is to be launched in June 2010

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and EMT continue to hold quarterly management briefings with
managers and n addition, these meetings provide the opportunity to discuss performance and how
Thames Water can continue to move forward

Overall staff turnover increased from 8 4% n 2009 to 9 8% in 2010 However, resignation levels
were lower in 2010 The decrease in resignations can likely be attributed to a more engaged working
environment following continued focus on employee engagement, the change in Company
ownership and also given the job market and ecocnomic uncertainty The increase in overall staff
turnover 15 due to the redundancies that have taken place in 2010 to support the business
restructunng

In 2010 the Company sickness rate was 3 20% (2009 3 04%) The increase can be attributed to the
swine flu epidemic The Company has an attendance management policy in place with the overall
aim of reducing and managing sickness absence
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Chief Executive Officer’s Business review (continued)

Relationships and resources (continued)
Employees {continued)

The Company has also launched a Diversity & Inclusion Strategic Framework, which will ensure that
it can improve in this area The implementation of SAP - HR will enable the Company to monitor its
diversity strategy more closely

The Company 1s committed to the training and development of all of its employees and employees
undertook 4,387 (2009 5,708) formal training days n 2010

Stakeholders

Establishing and maintaining good working relationships with stakeholders 1s of vital importance to
the Company  Stakeholders represent important constituencies and can have considerable
influence over the Company’s operations and, ultimately, business success In addition, the
Company’s activities often have a significant impact on its stakeholders

Much of the Company’s work with stakeholders throughout the year centred on securing the best
outcome for its customers and stakeholders from the Price Review This included briefings with
many of the 145 MPs and 106 local authonties whose areas the Company serves, In addition to
London Assembly Members, environmental Non-Governmental Organisations (“NGOs™) and the
Consumer Council for Water, the consumer champion By consulting and working in partnership
with its stakeholders the Company was able to ensure that its proposals better reflected their needs

The passage through Parliament of the Fiocod and Water Management Bill — now the Flood and
Water Management Act - represented the first major piece of legisiation for the industry in many
years, changing roles and responsibibties for flooding as well as addressing a variety of wider
issues The Company worked with Government and opposition MPs and the Department of
Environment, Food and Rural Affarrs (Defra’s) Bill team, to help them ensure the Bill reflected the
needs of its customers, the environment and the industry itself The Company also gave evidence to
the Environment, Food and Rural Affarrs (Efra) Committee which was given responsibility for pre-
legislative scrutiny of the Bil Thames Water welcomes the introduction within the Act of a sociat
tanff for the water industry, which it has strongly advocated for the last two years This will form an
essential part of the package of affordability measures that the Company plans to introduce to help
customers least able to pay for therr bills, particularly as a result of a move to increased metering

The Company i1s also pleased to see new measures to address customer debt in tenanted
properties, which it worked with Water UK to prepare and whose introduction will help reduce the
£12 currently pasd each year by customers who do pay their bills to subsidise those who do not pay
therr bills

Key suppliers and contractors

In 2010, the Company spent in excess of £1 1bn on construction, goods and services with a range of
supphers and contractors (2009 In excess of £1 2bn) Approximately 23 key supphers (2009 24)
were engaged with a spend greater than £10m each The Company’s policy 1s to establish trading
arrangements, which are made following an open non-discriminatory, competitive bidding process
Procurement processes reflect the Company’s corporate responsibiity commitments and, where
applicable, comply with the requirements of the Utilities Contracts Regulations 2006 (as amended)
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Relationships and resources {continued)
Research and development

The Company’s research and development programme consists of a portfolio of projects designed to
address technical needs across the range of water cycle activiles Research and Development
deliver innovative technical solutions through a research programme aligned with business needs to
address challenges for AMP 4 and now AMP 5 and also provide specialist technical support to the
business Expenditure on research and development totalled £3 5m for the year (2009 £3 5m)

Intellectual property

The Company protects intellectual property of material concern to the business as appropnate,
including the fihng of patents where necessary

Energy efficiency and renewable energy

The Company's total emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) reported for the 2010 were 757,218 Tonnes
{2009 851,546 Tonnes) of carbon emissions ("CO;"} The reported figure 1s compatible with the new
Decc/Defra guidance and Ofwat reporting requirements

However, the majonty of this reduction 1s associated with changes to accounting guidance from
DEEC and Defra In particular, carbon reduction benefit associated with self-generated renewable
energy can be counted where backed by Renewable Energy Guarantees of Ongin (REGO) as a
reduction this year and emissions associated with sludge to land are no longer reported The
Company's calculations do not include ‘short-cycle’ carbon dioxide in ine with Ofwat guidance

The Company focuses 1ts efforts on the most energy consumptive areas of the business, namely
operations (particularly the pumping of water and sewage) Durning the year the Company has
upgraded a further three pumping systems, returning them to therr onginal efficiency This work,
which included improvements at Lockwood and Kew Bridge, saved 888,759 KWh in 2010 Including
the sustained energy savings from previous years pumping efficiency cumulative energy savings of
7,046,559 KWh in 2010 (equivalent of 3,833 Tonnes CO; (per year) have been achieved

A critical factor in managing energy I1s the need for better metering, so that the Company can
measure how much gas or power it 1Is using The Company’s programme has installed automatic
remote meters at 2,566 sites in 2010, providing accurate energy consumption data to manage
energy efficiency This project aligns with the introduction of the Carbon Reduction Commitment
(“CRC") - a mandatory UK-wide scheme promoting energy efficiency among large businesses and
public sector orgarsations which started on 1 April 2010

Throughout 2010 the Company continued to deliver its energy efficiency programme, which includes
improvements in hghting and pumping Through the hghting efficiency project the Company has
Installed controls at a further three sites to turn lights off when builldings are unoccupied These have
been installed at Little Marlow Sewerage Treatment Works (“STW"), Ashford Water Treatment
Works (“WTW”) and Kempton WTW

The hghting efficiency project this year saved approximately 546,520 KWh When added to
sustained energy savings from prewvious year's programme of 1,641,237 KWh n 2009, this 1s a
cumulative energy saving of 2,187,757 KWh in 2010 This 1s equivalent to 1,190 Tonnes CQ, per
year
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Social and community
Corporate responsibility

The Company continues to be committed to operating In a sccially responsible way and to engaging
with stakeholders and communities Full details of the Company's Corporate Responsibiity (“CR")
performance are included in its annual CR report availlable on the Company's dedicated website
www thameswater co uk/cr

The Company was pleased to have achieved a 'Platinum’ ranking in this year's Business in the
Community Corporate Responsibility Index The Company's overall score was 95 2%, meeting the
target it set itself for the year and improving the performance on the previous year where Thames
Water was ranked 'Gold’ and scored 93 0%

Some of the key outputs from the Company’s community investment programme and its Ten for Ten
programme are set out below

Community Investment and Support

The Company's Community Investment strategy continues to focus on giving time and giving money
to support charities, schools and the community The programme connects employees with the
community that the Company serves, delivering business benefits such as developing skills and
improving the Company's reputation, as well as benefits to the commumnty

The Company ran a series of employee volunteering events throughout the year, including the
established volunteering partnerships with Reading RESCUE, a major environmental clean-up in
Reading and working with the chanty Thames 21 on a series of clean-ups for London’s waterways
The Company also joined forces with its principal charity, WaterAud, to form part of the world's
longest tollet queue, highlighting water and sanitation issues 1n developing nations

Through these events and individual volunteenng activities, the Company has achieved a volunteer
rate of around 10% of employees The Company’s “Time to Give" scheme allows each employee
two days in addition to their annual leave entittement in which they can volunteer for community
investment projects in the Company’s area

Charities

The Company and its employees were also heavily mnvolved with raising money for charities during
the year More than 900 employees took part in, or assisted with, fundraising activities to raise nearly
£70,000 for a vaniety of chanties £50,000 of this qualified for matched funding by Thames Water

The Company also supported its principal charnty, WaterAud, through staging the Love Water Ball A
record-breaking £636,000 was raised at the 2009 ball, the biggest single donation ever made to
WaterAd It will help provide a lasting supply of safe water, sanitation and hygiene education to over
40,000 people in impoverished areas of East Africa and India

To support the relief effort following the devastating earthquake in Haiti, the Company pledged
£30,000 through the chanty RedR — who are providing technical support for the water, sanitation and
hygiene {(WASH) cluster in Hati As well as providing funding, the Company 15 working in partnership
with RedR to provide technical support

Closer to home Thames Water strengthened its well established partnership with Thames 21 by
committing £100,000 over 3 years to fund Thames 21's East London Waterways Project Focused In
Newham and Tower Hamlets and working with seldom heard communities the project ams to raise
the profile and local ownership of the network of waterways in East London
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Ten for Ten

The Company has continued with its £10m Ten for Ten programme to benefit customers and
communities across the Company's service area

This year the Company has donated £2 5m to the Thames Water Trust Fund — which during the year
has heilped over 2,200 disadvantaged customers who were unable to pay their water bills Thames
Water have also made payments totallng £307,500 to help support 205 customers who have
suffered from the most senous sewer flooding incidents, including the exceptional flooding n July
2007

The Company has provided £275,000 to complete a project to build a pontoon giving disabled
sallors improved access to the Company's Farmoor Reservor near Oxford The scheme has
provided a wheelchair-friendly ramp, enabling the provision of hoists and safer handling facilities

As part of the Company’s commitment to improve the educational value of key water-related wisitor
attractions it has been working with the London Wetland Centre to redevelop ther popular pond
zone exhibit and Crossness Engines Trust to build an access road to the museum Donations
towards these educational projects total over £125,000

The Company has also been working to improve key wildiife and recreation sites outside London -
working with Wiltshire Wildlife Trust to create a nature reserve adjacent to Swindon Sewerage
Treatment Works, assisting the National Trust in improving the natural environment at ‘The Chase’
near Newbury, funding a community project at Goldsworth Park Lake in Woking, assisting mn the
planning of Reading’s Fobney Island community project and supporting the Environment Agency
with their national Otter Survey This year, Thames Water have donated over £68,000 towards these
projects

In September 2009, the Company launched the Thames Water Engineering Bursary, designed to
support students from the London Borough of Newham (and surrcunding boroughs} studying
engineering at the University of East London In the first year of the scheme, the Company
supported two students — assisting with their tuition fees - and will be offering them work placements
within the organisation in summer 2010

In December 2008, the winning carafe design was announced for the London on Tap campaign that
Thames Water ran jointly with the Mayor of London To gwe the ‘Carafe for London' the best
possible start, the Company donated over £3,500 to deserving causes this year and will donate a
further £6,500 over the course of the next year To enhance the campaign, the Company has also
funded the manufacture of the first two Hydrachill tap water dispensing machines, due to be installed
in London by summer 2010

The Company continues to work with a variety of partners and stakeholders to progress the Ten for
Ten projects

Martin Baggs
Chief Executive Officer
10 June 2010
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2010 These are the Company's statutory accounts as required {o be delivered to the Registrar of
Companies

Principal activities and likely future developments

The principal activities of the Company (Registered number 02366661} are the supply of water and
the collection and treatment of sewage, serving approximately 13 6m customers in London and the
Thames Valley

The information which, complies with the Operating and Financial Review (‘OFR") of the Companies
Act 2006 can be found within the Chief Executive Officer's Business review on pages 3 to 19 The
Company chose not to produce a voluntary OFR as these requirements are satisfied by the Chief
Executive Officer's Business review The Chief Executive Officer's Business review (which forms
part of the Directors’ report) comprises an analysis of the development and performance of the
business and Includes an assessment of future prospects, nmformation about research and
development activities, details of important events that have occurred since 31 March 2010 and Key
Performance Indicators ("KPis")

Details of parent and subsidiary undertakings are given in Notes 10 and 26 to the Financial
statements, on page 49 and 63 respectively, and the Company has no branches outside the United
Kingdom
Business review
This has been discussed in the Chief Executive Officer's Business review on pages 3 to 19
Results and dividends
The profit and loss account on page 30 gives the Company's financial results for the year
The Company paid interim dividends totalling £307 9m duning the year (2009 £222 Om)
The Company’s dividend policy Is
e To pay a progressive dividend commensurate with the long-term returns and business
performance, after considering the business’ current and expected regulatory and financial

performance, regulatory restrictions, management of economic risks and debt covenants

Directors, in assessing the dividend to be paid (to a maximum of statutory distributable reserves),
are required to ensure that

+ Sufficient iquidity 1s maintained to enable the business to meet its financial obligations for
15 months

+ Post-dividend financial ratios remain within therr agreed limits at both the balance sheet
date and on a forward-locking basis

The Board does not recommend a final dividend (2009 £nil), however, the Board has proposed a
further intenm dvidend, see note 8 page 47
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Directors

Details of the directors who served from 1 Apnl 2009 to the date of this report are shown below The
constitution of the Board is covered in more detal in the Company’s Corporate governance report,
which can be found on pages 25 to 27

All Board members from 1 Apnl 2009 to 31 March 2010 inclusive were Non-Executive Directors
(“NEDs") throughout the period, with the exception of Martin Baggs who replaced David Owens as
CEO upon his resignation, David Owens (resigned 2 December 2009) Stephen Shine (Chief
Operating Officer), and Mark Braithwaite (Chief Financial Officer)

Directors serving from 1 April 2009 to the date of this report are as follows

Sir Peter Mason KBE — Chairman

L F Abraira (appomnted 1 January 2010) |
M W Baggs

E Beckley

R Blomfield-Smith

S J Box (until 8 March 2010)

M W Braithwaite

C R Deacon

S Kolenc (resigned 1 January 2010)

D W Owens (resigned 2 December 2009)

M J Pavia

K Roseke (appointed 1 January 2010)

A F C DeP Santos (resigned 1 January 2010)
D J Shah

S F Shine

W Smut

M S W Stanley

The following directors have formally appointed alternate directors to represent them when they are
unavailable

Director Alternate Director
L F Abraira (appointed 1 January 2010) P Gomez {(appointed 1 January 2010,

resigned 31 March 2010)
O Mora (appointed 31 March 2010)

R Blomfield-Smith K Boesenberg (appointed 1 Apnl 2009)

S Kolenc (resigned 1 January 2010) L Webb (resigned 1 January 2010)

C R Deacon R D lIsrael

K Roseke (appointed 1 January 2010) S Kolenc (appointed 1 January 2010)

A F C DeP Santos (resigned 1 January 2010) S Batey (resigned 1 January 2010)

D J Shah C van Heyningen (resigned 1 January 2010)

R Vernion (appointed 1 January 2010)
Matenal financial instruments

Financial risk management 1s covered on page 6 of the Chief Executive Officer’s Business review
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Research and development activities
This has been noted in the Chief Executive Officer’s Business review on page 17
Employee involvement

Updates on operational and financial performance are available to all employees through briefings
by the CEQ, Company-wide emails and team bniefings

Methods of communication with employees vary dependent on the subject matter Company-wide
announcements, changes to Company policy and business updates are disseminated to all
employees, and the CEG and his EMT undertake regular briefings for managers and employees

Consultation with non-management employees 15 undertaken in partnership with the recognised
Trade Unmions Consultation with management level employees typically takes place on an indiwvidual
basis, except In the case of changes that affect whole areas of the business In these
circumstances, consultation takes place on a Company wide basis with employee representatives
being elected for the relevant area

All employees are involved in an annual Performance and Development Review (“PDR”) process
where the corporate and Business Unit objectives are agreed by the EMT, communicated and
cascaded through the Company and included on the annual PDR for all employees In addition,
relevant department or team objectives are cascaded and inform employees personal objectives
which are agreed with therr manager and reviewed regularly This process ensures that all
employees are aligned to Company objectives

Employment of disabled persons

The Company 1s committed to fulfilling its obligations in accordance with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995 The Company has policies and procedures in place that am to ensure that both job
applicants and employees with disabilities have equality of opportunity, are treated farrly and have a
safe and practical workplace, free from discrimination, bullying, harassment or victirmisation

Through disability and attendance management policies, support and training 1s provided for
employees who become disabled during the course of ther employment so that they continue to
work In a position appropriate to their experience and abilities

Policy and practice on payment of creditors
The Company's policy 1s to pay all suppliers, contractors and service providers according to pre-

agreed terms Durning the year under review, the average amount due to trade creditors represented
67 days (2009 70 days) purchases received from these creditors

Market value of land and buildings

In the opinion of the directors, the market value of the land and buildings of the Company does not
exceed the hook value at 31 March 2010
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Political and charitable donations and expenditure

No political donations were made by the Company (2008 £nil) The Company made chantable
donations totalling £471,500 (2009 £744,085) Detalls of these chantable donations are

£154,054 (2009 £152,385) to the Chanties Aid Foundation

£nil (2009 £7,800) to WaterArd

£60,000 (2009 £60,000) to Thames 21, a range of chanties which assist In cleaning rnivers and
streams within the Thames Valley

£nil (2009 £43,500) to improve the River Wandle in South London

£197,446 (2009 £nil) of donations to educational and recreational Ten for Ten projects

£60,000 (2009 £2,500) of other donations including a £30,000 donation to the Har relief effort

Going concern

The directors believe, after due and carefu! enquiry, that the Company has sufficient resources for its
present requirements and, therefore, consider it appropniate to adopt the going concern basis In
preparing the 2010 financial statements  Further information 15 set out in note 1 ‘Basis of
preparation’ on page 35

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as
they are each aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s
auditors are aware of that infermation

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors and
for the benefit of other persons who are directors of associated companies and these remamn in force
at the date of this report

Auditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors will be deemed to be reappointed
and KPMG Audit Pic will therefore continue in office

Approved by the Board of Directors on 10 June 2010 and signed on its behalf by

Signed on behalf of the Board
Martin Baggs
Chief Executive Officer

Clearwater Court
Vastern Road
Reading
Berkshire

RG1 8DB
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Annual report and financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law reguires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under
that law they have elected to prepare the financtal statements in accordance with UK Accounting
Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and far view of the state of affarrs of the Company and of the profit or loss of
the Company for that penod

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to
+ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
= Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prucent

« State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial posiion of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and te prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial

information included on the company's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions.
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Corporate governance report

Compliance Regime

The term ‘corporate governance’ 1s generally taken to refer to the supervision of how a
company 15 run and how the nsks to its business are managed It embraces regulation,
corporation structure and the function of the Board of Directors This statement 1s made In
order to comply with Regulatory requirements

The Company’'s shareholders and directors are all committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance This commitment 1s underpinned by the fact that, under the terms of its
Licence from Ofwat, the Company 1s required to pay particular regard to the Combined Code
on Corporate Governance (the “Code™), which 1s something that generally applies only to
companies whose shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange The introduction
acknowledges that departure from the Code's provisions maybe justfiable in particular
circumstances As the Company 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary in a privately-owned group, the
Board considers that a significant number of the provisions of the Code are not directly
applcable

Board Membership

Matters reserved to the Board are set out in the Shareholders’ Agreement The Board I1s
confident that it acts as independently of the shareholders as is feasible and that it takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company It also helieves that it has
demonstrated its commitment to ensunng that the Company’s obligations to its stakeholders
are understood and met, and that the necessary financial and management resources and
systems of planning and internal control, are in place to fulfil these obligations Supported by
the CEO and the EMT, the Board continues to take positive action towards regenerating the
Company's values and standards and establishing a clear strategic direction for the future

The Board 15 chaired by Sir Peter Mason, KBE Sir Peter has had a long and distingutshed
career In the engineering and construction industries, including Private Finance Intiatives and
design and project management He has also held several public service appointments,
pnmarly with the Department for Trade and Industry {now part of the Department for
Business Innovation and Skills) S Peter's external appontments include, Senior
Independent Director of BAE Systems plc and Charman of Acergy SA Owng to his
directorships 1n other group companies, Sir Peter 1s considered not to be independent and
neither was he upon his appointment Sir Peter's responsibdities as Chairman include
leadership of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness, setting its agenda and ensuring effective
communication with the Company’s shareholders Additionally, he 15 responsible for ensuring
that the directors recewve accurate, timely and clear information and that constructive relations
exist between the Board and the EMT

The directors have specialist knowledge of the water industry and other regulated utilities
The Board and Ofwat consider that Michael Pavia {former Chief Financial Officer of the
London Electnicity Group) and Willem Smit (former Managing Director of the regulated utility,
TXU Europe) are independent non-executive directors

Durning January 2010, the Board conducted a detaled evaluation of its own performance and
that of its committees by means of a written questionnaire and selective interviews with a
sample of Board members The results of the evaluation were considered and discussed by
the Board in March 2010 and the results will be used to re-assess effectiveness during the
year
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Corporate governance report (continued)

Committees of the Board

The four standing commuttees of the Board are as follows

* Audit and Risk Review
e Regulatory
s Health, Safety and Environment

¢ Compensation and HR

Each committee has written terms of reference and the collective function of the Committees
Is to exercise oversight on behalf of the Board and to provide advice to the Board Other
committees are formed as and when required to deal with specific matters, for example the

Thames Tideway Tunnel Project

Membership of the committees throughout the year ended 31 March 2010 1s set out below

Audit and Risk Review Committee (“ARRC”)

S Box (Chaiwrman untl 8 March 2010), M
Pawia (appointed Chairman* 10 June 2010),
M W Baggs {resigned 27 November 2009),
E Beckley (appointed 27 November 2009)
and R Blomfield-Smith

Regulatory Committee

M W Baggs (Charman), E Beckley, S Box
{untll 8 March 2010) and D Shah

Health, Safety and Environment Committee

M Pavia {Charman), M W Baggs, S Kolenc
(appointed 27 July 2009) and L Webb
(resigned 27 June 2009)

Compensation and HR Committee

M Stanley (Chairman), C Deacon, Sir Peter
Mason and W Smit

*M Pavia has been the acting Charrman of the ARRC since 8 March 2010

The Board reviews nsk management arrangements and the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control systems through the ARRC The primary objectives of the ARRC are the
preservation of good financial practices throughout the Company, ensuring that robust
contrals are in place to support the integrity of those practices, reviewing risk management
processes, reviewing the Company's interim and annual financial statements and the June
Return to the Water Services Regulatory Authonty and the provision, by way of (amongst
other things) meetings, of a ine of communication between the Board and external auditors
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Corporate governance report (continued)

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company's system of internal control The system
Is designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of falure to meet business objectives
and can only provide reasonable, not absolute assurance, against matenal misstatement or
loss

The key features of the system of internal control and nisk management are as follows

¢ A control environment with clearly defined organisation structures operating within a
framework of policies and procedures covering every aspect of the business

s Comprehensive business planning, risk assessment and financial reporting procedures,
including the annual preparation of detalled operational budgets for the year ahead and
projections for subsequent years

« Regular monitoring of risks and control systems throughout the year, supported by the
use of risk registers

* A self-certification process whereby management i1s required to confirm that the system of
internal control 1s operating effectively

» An internal audit funchon providing independent scrutiny of internal control systems and
rnsk management procedures

e Areview of reports produced by internal and external audit

The directors routinely review the effectiveness of the system of internal control and nsk
management, principally by means of

 Regular presentations to the ARRC and EMT by heads of individual business units and
functional heads, describing therr sk management strategies and detailing the status of
signiftcant business nsks

*» Reports of significant changes to the Company’s overall nsk profile, which are also
reported to the ARRC
Standing reports from the Internal Audit Department to the ARRC
Reports to the ARRC on the results of the self-certification process and independent
reports thereon by the Internal Audit Department

Auditors’ iIndependence and objectivity

The ARRC monitors regularly the non-audit services provided to the Company by the external
auditors The auditors do not

Self review

Make management decisions for the Company

Have a mutuality of financial interest with the Company
Act in the role of advocate for the Company

The ARRC also meets with the auditors in private Approval of the ARRC 1s required for any
services provided by the external auditors where the fee 1s likely to be in excess of £100,000
Details of the fees paid to the external auditors during the year ended 31 March 2010 for audit
and non-audit services are set out in Note 3 to the financial statements on page 43 of this
Annual report and financial statements

27




censc

KPMG Audit Plc

8 Salisbury Square
London E14 5AG
United Kingdom

Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Thames Water
Utilities Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Thames Water Utihities Limited for the year ended 31
March 2010 as set out on pages 30 to 64 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation I1s applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no
other purpose

To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiliies Statement set out on page 24, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satishied that they give a
true and fair view

Our responsibility 15 to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicabte law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's web-site at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKNP

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affars as at 31 March 2010 and of its profit for
the year then ended

» have been properly prepared In accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
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Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Thames Water
Utilities Limited (continued)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared Is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you If, in our opirion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

« the financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Nodta,

Paul Johnson {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

8 Sabsbury Square

London

EC4Y 8BB

10 June 2010
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March

31 March 31 March
2010 2009
Note
£m £m

Turnover 1,623 8 1,558 2
Operating costs 3 (952.7) (952 9)
Operating profit 671.1 605 3
Profit on sale of fixed assets 4 379 82
Interest payable and similar charges 6 (304 5) (292 9}
Interest recevable 8 €63.9 117 4
Other finance expense 25 {14.8) (29)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 453 6 435 1
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 7 (122.6) (120 3}
Profit for the financial year 20 331.0 314 8

All amounts above relate to continuing operations

Statement of total recognised gains and losses for the year ended

31 March
31 March 31 March
Note 2010 2009
£m £m
Profit for the financial year 3310 3148
Actuanal loss on pension scheme 25 {105.4) (133 0)
Deferred tax relating to actuarial loss 29.5 372
Total recognised gains in the year 255.1 2180
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Balance sheet as at 31 March

31 March 31 March
Note 2010 2009
£m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 7,532.4 71238
Investments 10 0.1 01
7,532.5 71239
Current assets
Stocks 11 7.7 61
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 12 603.0 606 0
Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year 13 1,180.0 1,180 0
1,783.0 1,786 0
Investments 16 573 2 3216
Cash at bank and in hand 16 5.9 204 2
2,3698 2,317 9
Creditors* amounts falling due within one year 14 (1,350.5) (1,110 7)
Net current assets 1,019.3 1,207 2
Total assets less current liabilities 8,551.8 8,3311
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 15 {5,789.7) {5,663 1)
Provisions for habilities and charges 17 {1,098.3) {1,011 9)
Net assets excluding pension liabilities 1,663 8 1,656 1
Net pension habilities 25 {107.4) (46 9)
Net assets including pension liabilities 1,556 4 1,609 2
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 18 1,029.0 1,029 0
Share premium account 19 100.0 1000
Profit and loss account 20 427.4 480 2
Total shareholder's funds 21 1,556.4 1,6092

The notes on pages 35 to 64 form part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 June 2010 and signed on its

behalf by

Y il

Mark Braithwaite
Chief Financial Officer
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March

31 March 31 March
Note 2010 2009
£m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities (a) 1,011.8 9152
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 200.5 638
Interest paid (298.1) (208 8)
Interest element In finance lease payments {10.5) {12 7)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and (108.1) (157 7)
servicing of finance
Taxation {76 0} (70 2)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Gross cost of purchased fixed assets (724.7) {915 5)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (71.3) {104 8)
Receipt of grants and contributions 431 321
Sale proceeds of fixed assets {d) 399 87
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial {(713.0) (979 5)
mvestment
Equity dividends paid (307.9) (222 0)
(193.2) (514 2)
Management of liquid resources
Increase in short term deposits (251.6) {306 0)
Net cash outflow before financing (444.8) (820 2)
Financing
Capital element in finance lease rebate/(payment) (5.4) 46
New loans 454.7 1,320 3
Repayment of loans {202.8) (366 3)
Net cash inflow from financing (b) & (c) 246.5 9586
{Decrease)/increase in cash (b) & {c) (198.3) 138 4

Interest received of £200 5m includes £116 9m receved from Thames Water Utilthes Holdings Limited
which 1s not included In the adjusied interest cover ratio calculations as defined in the Chief Executive’s

Report on page 8
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating
activities

31 March 31 March

Note 2010 2009

£m £m

Operating profit 671 1 6053
Depreciation {infrastructure renewals charge) 3 1140 1140
Depreciation {non infrastructure) 3 2295 224 4
Difference between pension charge and cash contnbutions (36.9) (34 7)
{Increase)/decrease in stocks {1.6) 09
(Increase)/decrease in debtors and prepaid expenses (62.2) 245
Increase/(decrease) in creditors and accrued expenses 1171 (02)
Decrease in provisions {4.7) (40)
Release of deferred income (14.6) (15 0)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,011.8 915 2

(b) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

31 March 31 March

Note 2010 2009

£m £m

{Decease)/increase in cash n the year {198.3) 1384
Cash inflow from increase in iquid resources 251.6 306 0
Cash inflow from movement in net debt and financing (246.5) (958 6)
Increase in net debt resulting from cashflows (193.2) (514 2)
Non-cash increase in net debt {39.8) {55 7)
Total increase in net debt (233.0) (569 9)
Opening net debt {5,316 4) (4,746 5)
Closing net debt (c) {5,549 4) (5,316 4)

The non-cash increase in net debt comprises amortisation of bond fees and the carrying value
accretion by RPI, of a number of RPI index-linked bonds and swaps This adjustment for RPI index-
linked bonds and swaps 1s In accordance with FRS 4 'Capital instruments’, which requires the
carrying value of such index-linked loans to be recalculated at each balance sheet date
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March
(continued)

{c) Analysis of movement in net debt

As at Other non- As at

1 April cash 31 March

2009 Cashflow movements 2010

£m £m £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 204 2 (198 3) - 59
Short term deposits 3216 251 6 - 573.2
5258 533 - 579.1

Debt due within one year (353 2) (191 4) - {544.6)
Debt due after more than one year {5,279 9) (60 5) {39 8) (5,380.2)
Finance leases (208 1) 54 - {203.7)
{5,842 2) (246 5) {39 8) (6,128.5)

Total {5,316 4) (193 2) (39 8) {5,549.4)

(d) Profit on disposal of fixed assets

The proceeds received regarding the profit on the sale of fixed assets for the year ending 31 March
2010 of £399m (2009 £8 7m) have been included within Capital expenditure and financial
investment




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March

1 Principal accounting policies

The following accounting polictes have been appled consistently in dealing with tems, which are
considered material to the financial statements, except as noted below

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention and with
applicable accounting standards in the UK and, except for the treatment of certain capital
contributions, with the Companies Act 2006 An explanation of this departure from the requirements
of the Act 15 given in note 1(b) below

The Company has not prepared consolidated group financial statements, as permitted under section
400 of the Compantes Act 2006 The Company and its subsidiaries are included in the consclidated
financial statements of its parent company Kemble Water Holdings Limited, a company registered in
the United Kingdom

Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors lkely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out In the Chief Executive Officer's Business review on pages 3 to
19 The financial position of the Company, its cash flows, hquidity position and borrowing facilities
are described in the Chief Executive Officer's Business review on pages 7 to 8 In addition, it
includes details of the Company's Treasury policy, capital structure and financial nsk management

The Company meets its capital programme requirements by raising new debt Day to day working
capital requirements are funded by the business During the year £454 7Tm of new faclites were
secured and there 15 no requirement to raise additional finance to meet future project obligations
There 1s also committed facilites with a group of banks of £1,105m, which 1s rarely used Of the
£1,105m, £355m 364 day faciities 1s due for renewal by 30 August 2010 with the remainder maturing
in September 2012 The current economic conditions create uncertainty particularly over {(a) the
level of revenue eamed from regulatory activities, (b) the increased occurrence of bad debts, and (c)
the avallability of bank finance i the foreseeable future The Company's forecasts and projections,
taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Company
should be able to operate within the level of its current facility

The directors believe, after due and careful enquiry, that the Company has sufficient resources for its
present requirements and, therefore, consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the 2010 financia!l statements

Changes to accounting policies

The same accounting policies used for the period ended 31 March 2009 have been applied in these
financial statements, except as noted below

The Company has restated other operating charges and own work capitalised for the year ended 31

March 2009 (£27 5m}) to reflect the change in accounting treatment of intra-group maintenance
costs, which 1s now treated gross This reclassification does not affect operating profit
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below

{a) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of the income recevable i the ordinary course of business for
goods and services provided and are recognised in accordance wih FRS 5 ‘Reporting the
Substance of Transactions’ No adjustment is made to reduce revenue by an estimated bad debt
charge to reflect the far value as it 1s not deemed material Where relevant, revenue includes an
estimate of the sales value of water supplied and waste water charges to customers between the
date of the last meter reading and the period end, exclusive of value added tax The estimated
usage 1s based upon historical data, judgement and assumptions, actual results could differ from
these estimates, which would result in operating revenues being adjusted in the period that the
revision to the estimates 1s determined For customers who do not have a meter, the receivable
billed 15 dependent upon the rateable value of the property, as assessed by an independent rating
officer

Additional charges added to a customer’s account as a result of debt recovery activity, such as court
costs or solicitors fees, are recognised as negative operating costs when payment 1s received in both
the statutory and regulatory accounts All water and sewerage charges billed to customers are
recognised as income at the time they are billed and apportioned over the penod to which they
relate For consumption by measured customers which has not yet been billed, an accrua! 1s
estimated

Where there 1s a change of customer in an Unmeasured property but the Company cannot confirm
the name, then in this instance a bill 1s raised 1n the name of “The Occupler” The Company does not
raise billing in the name of the Occupter for metered accounts However, an Unmeasured bill in the
name of “The Occupier” will be cancelled and rebilled once the Company has confirmation of the
customer’s name If confirmation i1s not received the bill 1s cancelled and the property Is classified as
empty

Where a property I1s classified as empty, an empty property process i1s followed to verfy when the
property becomes occupied and/or obtain the name of the customer (a domestic property must be
unoccupted and unfurmished to be classified as empty) The empty property process comprises a
number of steps If these steps confirm that a property appears to be empty then the supply may be
tumed off The property will only cease to be classified as empty when a named customer I1s
identified and billed The Company does not recognise income In respect of empty properties If the
Company has turned off the supply of water at the mains to a property at a customer’s request then
water supply charges are not payable

With regard to new properties, an estimate of the sales value of water supplied and waste water
charges to customers between the date of connection and the penod end 1s made

The Company recognises all revenue at the time of delivery Should the Company consider that the
cntena for revenue recognition are not met for a transaction, revenue recognition would be delayed
until such time as the transaction becomes fully earned Payments received in advance of delivery
are recorded as deferred revenue
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(b) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets compnse infrastructure assets {(mains, sewers and pumped raw water storage
reservoirs and sludge pipelines), and other asseis (including land, bulldings, properties, over ground
plant and equipment)

Directly attnbutable costs are capitalised within fixed assets These costs include employee costs
and other internal costs that are incremental to the business due to the scale and nature of the
capital implementation programme of the Company Interest costs are not capitalised

The estimated useful economic lives of fixed assets are based on management’s judgement and
experience When management identifies that actual useful hves differ materially from the estimates
used to calculate depreciation, that charge I1s adjusted prospectively

The carrying values of fixed assets are also reviewed for impairment where there has been a tngger
event by assessing the present value of estimated future cash flows and net realisable value
compared with net book value The calculation of estimated future cash flows and residual values 1s
based on the directors’ best estimates of future prices, output and costs and 1s therefore subjective

¢ Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets compnse a network of systems In the UK Water and Waste regulated
business, all expenditure on infrastructure assets 1s capitalised at cost, whilst the planned
element incurred In maintaining the operating capability of the network in accordance with
defined service standards 1s expensed as IRC within depreciation

Following the completion of the Company’s assessment of the infrastructure renewals
expenditure requirement to the end of AMP 7 for the Final Business Plan, the Company now
conswders that it would be appropriate to reflect in its regulatory and statutory accounts for
2009 and 2010 an infrastructure renewals charge consistent with its expenditure plans for
the AMP 5 to AMP 7 (2010-2025) periods

+ Capital contributions

Captal contributions received in respect of infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of
fixed assets This 1s not in accordance with Schedule 1 to the Companies Act 2008, which requires
fixed assets to be stated at ther purchase price without deduction of contributions, which are
accordingly accounted for as deferred income This departure from the requirement of the Act s, n
the opinion of the directors, necessary for the financial statements to give a true and fair view
because infrastructure assets do not have a determinable finte ife Accordingly, related capital
contributions would not be recognised in the profit and loss account The financial effect of this
departure 1s disclosed in note 8

Where matenal, contnbutions received towards the cost of other assets are accounted for as

deferred mcome and released to the profit and loss account over the estimated economic lives of the
assets
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)
{b) Tangible fixed assets {(continued)
+ Other assets

All other assets, comprising plant and equipment and land and bulldings, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation

Cost includes expenditure that i1s directly attributable to the acquisition of the items
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably

Freehold land 15 not depreciated and assets In the course of construction are not
depreciated until they are commisstoned Other assets are depreciated by writing off their
cost less ther estimated residual value evenly over therr estmated useful lives, down to
zero, based on management's jJudgement and experience, which are principally as follows

Buildings 10 - 60 years
Operational structures 5- 100 years
Other 20 - 60 years
Fixtures, fitings, vehicles and computers 3 -40 years
Fixed and mobile plant 5 - 60 years

Depreciation methods, residual values and useful lives are re-assessed annually and, If necessary,
changes are accounted for prospectively

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in the profit and
loss account

(c) Impairment of tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are assessed for i/mparment whenever there 15 an indication of imparment to
determine whether any assets may have suffered an impairment loss  If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the Impairment
loss, If any Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs

The recoverable amount i1s the higher of far value less costs to sell, and value in use Value in use
represents the net present value of expected future cash flows discounted on a pre-tax basis using a
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) s reduced to its
recoverable amount Imparrment of non-current assets Is recognised In the profit and loss account
within operating costs

Where an imparment loss subsequently reverses, it 1s recognised in the profit and loss account and
the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
not so as to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised In prior years
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March

1 Principal accounting policies {continued)

(d) Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Costs compnse direct matenals and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to ther present location and condition Cost Is calculated using the weighted average
method Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distnbution

(e) Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current taxation

Current taxation, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s based on the taxable profit
for the penod and 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date

Taxable profit differs from the net profit as reported in the profit and loss account because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible In other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation i1s recognised without discounting, in respect of all timing differences
between the treatment of certan items for taxation and accounting purposes, which have
arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet, except as otherwise required by FRS18

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on
the basis of all availlable evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will
be suitable taxable profits against which to recover carried forward tax losses and from
which the future reversal of underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred taxation 18 measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in
which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have
been enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 charged or credited in the profit and loss account except when it relates to
items charged or credited to equity, in which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with via the
Statement of total recognised gains and losses

] Leased assets

Leases are classified according to the substance of the transaction A lease that transfers
substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the lessee 1s classified as a finance lease All
other leases are classified as operating leases

» Finance leases

Finance leases are capitalised in the balance sheet at their far value or, If lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease

The corresponding liability 1s shown as a finance lease obligation to the lessor Leasing
repayments comprise both a capital and a finance element The finance element 1s written
off to the profit and less account so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the outstanding obligation Such assets are depreciated over the shorter of therr
estimated useful lives and the period of the lease to the first break clause
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)
f Leased assets (continued)
* Operating leases

Operating lease rentals are charged io the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease

(9) Pension and other post retirement benefits

The Company operates two large defined benefit pension schemes The Company accounts for
these schemes n accordance with FRS 17 ‘Retrement Benefits' The schemes are the Thames
Water Pension Scheme (“TWPS”) and Thames Water Mirror Image Pension Scheme (“TWMIPS"),
which are independently administered funds, for the substantial majonty of its employees Actuanial
valuations are carried out as determined by the pension scheme trustees using the projected urut
credit method for both pension schemes at intervals of not more than three years, the rates of
contribution payable and the pension cost being determined on the advice of the actuanes, having
regard to the resulis of these valuations The Company believes that the assumptions utilised in
recording obligations under the two schemes are reasonable based on prior experience, market
conditions and the advice of scheme actuanes However, actual results may differ from such
assumptions For any ntervening reporttng period, the actuanes review the continuing
appropriateness of the contribution rates (a complete actuanal valuation 1s performed every three
years) Defined benefit assets are measured at farr value while liabilities are measured at present
value (which approximates to fair value}

The difference between the assets and liabiliies of the schemes are recognised as a surplus (to the
extent that the surplus 1s recoverable) or obligation in the balance sheet

The cost of providing pension benefits to employees 1s included in the profit and loss account within
the cost of employee benefits The difference between the expected return on scheme assets and
interest on scheme habilities are included within other finance income/expense In the profit and loss
account

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised outside the profit and loss account i retained earnings
and are presented in the Statement of total recognised gains and losses

In addition, the Company also operates two closed defined contnibution pension schemes The
Company has no further payment obligations for these schemes, however, defined funds for
tndividuals are held within these schemes

(h) Foreign currencies

Transactions i foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and lhabilites denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
sterling using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Gains and losses ansing on
retranslation are included in the profit and loss account for the year

(1 Cash

Cash includes cash at bank and in hand, deposits, and shori-term highly hquid investments which
are readily convertible on initial Investment into known amounts of cash at any time without penalty
or if a matunity or period of notice of not more than 24 hours or cne working day has been agreed

)] Debtors

Debtors are stated at nominal value {(which approximates to far value) less allowances for estimated
iIrrecoverable amounts

(k) Creditors

Creditors are stated at their nominal value {(which approximates to fair value)
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March

1 Principal accounting policies {continued)
n Financial liabilities and equity

Financial habilites and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into  An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a
residual interest In the assets of the Company after deducting all of its habilities

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue
costs

+ Borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct 1ssue costs Finance charges, ncluding premiums payable on settlement or
redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an amortised cost basis in the profit
and loss using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they anse

» Financial instruments and derivatives

Interest rate swap agreements and financial futures are used to manage Interest rate
exposure While the Company enters into cumency swaps to manage its exposure to
fluctuations in exchange rates, the Company does not use denvative financial instruments
for speculative purposes

The Company currently does not apply FRS 26 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement’, and accordingly the disclosure requrements of FRS 29 ‘Financial
Instruments Disclosures’ are not applicable Therefore, the presentation requirements of
FRS 25 ‘Financial Instruments Presentation’ have been applied However, certain voluntary
disclosures have been prepared to aid understanding and comparability with prior year

Foreign currency and interest rate swaps are accounted for on an amortised cost basis in
accordance with FRS 4 ‘Capital Instruments’ Swaps are included in the appropriate caption
in note 16
(m) Accruals and deferrad income
Grants and contributions recewvable in respect of depreciating fixed assets are treated as deferred
income, which 1s credited to the profit and loss account over the estimated economic lives of the
related assets
{n} Research and development

Expendilure on research and development 1s written off to the profit and loss account in the year in
which it 1s iIncurred
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1 Principal accounting policies (continued)
{o) Accounting for provisions and contingencies

The Company 1s subject to a number of clams that are incidental to the normal conduct of its
business These relate to and include commercial and contractual claims, which are handled and
defended in the ordinary course of business The Company routinely assesses the likelihood of any
adverse judgements or outcomes to these malters as well as ranges of probable and reasonably
estimated losses Reasonable estimates involve judgements made by management after
considering information including notfications, settlements, estmates performed by independent
parties and legal counsel, avallable facts, identification of other potentially responsible parties and
thear ability to contnbute, and prior experience

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount can be reliably estmated Insurance provisions are recognised or
released by assessing their adequacy using current estimates of future cash flows under insurance
contracts Prowvisions are recorded in the balance sheet at therr full value and are not therefore
discounted

()] Related party disclosures

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under paragraph 3(c) from the provisions of
FRS 8 ‘Related party disclosures’, which requrres the disclosure of the detals of materal
transactons between, the reporting entity and any related parties within the Kemble Water Holdings
Limited Group, on the grounds that it 1Is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kemble Water Holdings
Limited, a company reqgistered in the United Kingdom

(q) Dividends

Dwidends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a habilty at that date to the extent
that they are appropnately authornsed and are no longer at the discretion of the Company Unpad
dvidends that do not meet these cntena are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

(n Provision for doubtful debts

At each reporting date, the Company evaluates the collectability of trade recewvables and records
provisions for doubtful receivables based on expernence These provisions are based on, amongst
other things, comparisons of the relative age of accounts and consideration of actual write-off history

The actual level of receivables collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery, which
could impact operating results positively or negatively

2 Segmental analysis

The directors consider that the Company has one class of business and this 1s conducted wholly
within the United Kingdom
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3 Operating costs

Analysis of operating costs by type of expense

31 March 31 March

Note 2010 2009

{restated *)

£m £m

Staff costs 5 200.8 2150

Matenals and consumables 135.2 1300

Other operating charges 437.9 421 8

Depreciation

Owned assets (infrastructure renewals charge) 9 114.0 114 0

Owned assets (non-infrastructure) 9 2199 214 8

Assets held under finance leases (non-infrastructure) 9 9.6 96
Rental under operating leases

Hire of plant and machinery 31 39

Other 7.2 68

Research and development 35 35

Other operating income (8.1) {(77)

Foreign currency loss/(gain) 0.8 {03)

1,123.9 1,111 4

Own work capitalised {171.2) {158 5)

952.7 8952 9

* The Company has restated other operating charges and own work capitalised for the year ended
31 March 2009 (£27 5m) to reflect the change in reporting of intra-company maintenance costs,
which 15 now treated gross This reclassification does not affect operating profit

Included in the above 15 auditors’ remuneration in respect of the following
31 March 31 March

2010 2009
Fees payable to current auditors: £'000 £000

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the

Company’'s accounts 187 180
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates

for other services

Other services pursuant to legislation 77 133
Other services relating to taxation 4 35
All other services 78 25
Total aggregate remuneration 346 373

31 March 31 March

2010 2009
Fees payable to previous auditors: £'000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’'s auditors and its associates
for other services
Other services pursuant to legislation - 65
All other services - 43
Audit fees in respect of the Company's pension schemes - 59
Total aggregate remuneration - 167
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4 Profit on sale of fixed assets
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 37.9 82
Taxation attributable, included in the charge for the percd 4.7 140

5 Information regarding directors and employees

Aggregate directors’ emoluments

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£'000 £000

Salary 916 088
Pension 346 180
Bonus 1,641 1,099
Other benefits 985 41
Total aggregate emoluments 3,888 2,308

At 31 March 2010 £39,898 1s accruing to 2 directors (2009 £49,660 for 3 directors} under the
Group's defined benefit scheme

Included In the above, I1s £938,000 paid to David Owens on leaving office in recognition of significant
achievements over the previous three years (2009 £nil)

Highest paid director

Total emoluments, including payments and accruals under long term incentive schemes of the highest
paid director in respect of work done for the Company dunng the year was £1,247,711 (2009 £770 436)
and accrued pension under the Group's defined benefit scheme was £25,824 (2009 £20,740)

Employee information
The average number of persons employed by the Company, including executive directors, during the

year was
31 March 31 March

2010 2009

Number Number

Support 292 398
Operations 4,803 4,677
Total employee numbers 5,095 5,075
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5 Information regarding directors and employees (continued)

Employment costs including executive directors' remuneration were
31 March 31 March

Note 2010 2009
£m £m
Salaries and wages 169.1 178 2
Social security costs 151 151
Pension costs 25 176 153
Severance costs 0.9 84
Total 202.7 2170
Employment costs included within research and
development (1.9) (20)
Net employment costs 200.8 2150
6 Net interest payable and similar charges
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m

Bank loans, overdrafts and other loans

Group loans {214.8) (244 8)

Bank loans (34 5) (26 7)

Other loans (45.4) (10 8)
Finance charges in respect of finance leases (9.8) (10 6)
Interest payable and similar charges {304 5) {292 9)
Interest recevable

Group loans 283 731

Other [oans 4.2 93

Swaps 31.4 350
Interest receivable 63.9 117 4
Net interest payable and similar charges {240.6) {175 5)

Amounts recelvable on swaps relate to interest rates and cross-currency swaps taken out to hedge
rates on external borrowings See note 16, page 53

The net interest receivable on swaps 15 the aggregate effect of all swaps held in the Company
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7 Taxation

(a) Analysis of charge in the year

31 March 31 March
Note 2010 2009
£m £m
Current tax
Amounts payable in respect of corporation tax for the year 597 626
Adjustment in respect of prior years {12.2) (36 1)
Total current tax 7(b) 47.5 265
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of iming differences 57.4 408
Timing difference on pension cost charge 59 89
Adjustments in respect of prior years 118 351
Total deferred tax 751 0938
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 122.6 120 3

Of the deferred tax charge as at 31 March 2010 of £75 1m (2009 £93 8m), a deferred tax charge for
the year ended 31 March 2010 of £69 2m (2009 £84 9m) 1s shown as a movement within note 17
{provisions for liabilities and charges), and a deferred tax charge for the year ended 31 March 2010
of £5 9m (2009 £8 9m) 1s shown within note 25 (pension schemes)

{b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax charge for the year 1s lower (2009 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
{28%), (2009 28%) The differences are explained below

31 March 31 March

Note 2010 2009
£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 453.6 435 1
Profit on ordinary activites multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 28% (2009 28%) 127.0 1218
Effects of
Inceme not taxable {intra-group disposals of property) less
disallowable expenditure {(40) (0 5)
Captal allowances for the year in excess of depreciation
and other timing differences (57 4) {49 B8)
Pension cost charge lower than pension cost relief (59 (8 9)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years {12.2) (36 1)
Current tax charge for the year 47 5 265
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8 Dividends

31 March 31 March
The aggregate amount of dividends compnses Note 2010 2009
£m £m
Dividends paid in respect of prior year but not recognised
as liabihties in that year
Third interim paid 11 4p (2009 nil) per ordinary share 116 9 -
Fourth interim paid 5 8p (2009 nil) per ordinary share 60.0 -
Interim dividends paid in respect of the current year
First ntenm paid 12 7p (2009 12 7p) per ordinary share 131.0 1310
Second intenim paid nit (2009 8 8p) per ordinary share - 910
20& 21 307.9 2220

As a post balance sheet event, on 10 June 2010 the directors approved a second intenm dividend of
£28 2m (2 7p per ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2010 This interm dividend
will be paid to Thames Water Utihties Holdings Limited {(TWUHL) on 24 June 2010, and will be used
by TWUHL to setile inter-company interest owing to Thames Water Utilities Limited On the same
day, the directors also approved a further intenm dividend of £132 3m (12 8p per ordinary share) in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2010 This intenm dividend will be paid n two tranches of

£75 0m to TWUHL in June 2010 and £57 3m in September 2010

9 Tangible fixed assets

Land and Plant and Infrastructure Assats In Total
buildings equipment assets course of
construction
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apnil 2009 24656 3,979 6 4,502 4 - 10,947 6
Reclassification 1 (221 8) (611 4) {820 0) 1,653 2 -
Reclagsification 2 (108 2) 108 2 - - -
At 1 April 2009 restated 21356 3,476 4 36824 1,653 2 10,947 6
Additions - - - 7825 7825
Transfers between items 1393 627 9 492 2 (1,259 4) -
Disposals (04) (2 3) (0 8) - (33)
At 31 March 2010 2,274.5 4,102 0 4,174.0 1,176.3 11,726.8
Capital contributions
At 1 Apnil 2009 - - 5607 - 5607
Additions - - 284 - 284
At 31 March 2010 - - 589.1 - 589 1
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2009 618 1 1,818 3 B26 7 - 3,263 1
Reclassification 2 (68 0) 68 0 - - -
At 1 April 2009 restated 550 1 1,886 3 8267 - 3,263 1
Provided durnng the year 48 2 1813 114 0 - 3435
Disposals {(01) (12) - - {13)
At 31 March 2010 598.2 2,066.4 940.7 - 3,605 3
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2010 1,676.3 2,035.6 2,644.2 1,176.3 7,532.4
At 31 March 2009 restated 1,685 5 1,590 1 2,2950 1,653 2 7,123 8
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9 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

The net book value of land and buildings 15 analysed as follows

31 March
2009
(restated *)
£m

Freehold land and buildings
Leasehold - over 50 years
Leasehold — under 50 years

1,5795
29
3

1,685 5

1 The directors have reclassified Assets in course of construction as a separate disclosure
within the above table Previously these assets were shown within the asset categories to

which it relates

2 The directors have also undertaken a substantive review of its assets as part of the
implementation of the Company’s new Electronic Reporting System SAP — Finance, with the
result that certain assets have been reclassified as considered to more accurately reflect the
asset class The gross book values and associated depreciation have therefore been

reclassified accordingly

The net book values have been unaffected as a result of the above two events as all assets were
depreciated over the correct useful economic life

Depreciation has not been charged on freehold land stated in the financial statements at cost of

£34 9m (2009 £34 4m)

Detaills of the Company’s tangible fixed assets, which are held under finance leases, are

Total
£m

Cost
At 1 April 2009 2725
Additions -
At 31 March 2010 272.5
Depreciation
At 1 April 2009 126 9
Provided during the year 96
At 31 March 2010 136.5
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2010 136.0
At 31 March 2009 145 6
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10 Fixed asset investments

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£m £m

Cost of shares in subsidiaries 01 01

At 31 March 2010 the Company held the allotted share capital of the following undertakings

Name of undertaking Nominal value and Proportion of Activity
class of shares held nominal value of
issued shares held

Thames Water Utiities  £1 Ordinary 100% Finance Company
Finance Limited

Thames Water Utilittes  $1 Ordinary 100% Finance Company
Cayman Finance
Holdings Limited

Thames Water Utlites Finance Limited was incorporated and registered in Great Britan  Thames
Water Utiities Cayman Finance Heldings Limited was incorporated and registered n the Cayman
Islands

At 31 March 2010 Thames Water Utilties Finance Limited had net abilities of £32 1m (2009 assets
£96,000) and incurred a loss for the year ended 31 March 2010 of £32 2m (2009 profit £43,000)

At 31 March 2010 Thames Water Utiliies Cayman Finance Holdings Limited had net assets of £1 (2009
£1) No profit or loss had been made in the year (2009 £nil)

11 Stocks
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
Raw materials and consumables 77 61

12 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£m £fm

Trade debtors 2425 208 4
Amounts owed by group underakings

- Interest 282 116 9

- Non interest 40 17

Amounts receivable in respect of corporation tax 130 119

Amounts recevable in respect of group relief 1.8 -

Other debtors 521 49 3

Insurance claims recevable 75.7 537

Prepayments and accrued income 185.7 164 1

6030 606 0
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12 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year (continued)

Amounts owed by group undertakings are comprised of

= Interest receivable of £28 2m (2009 £116 9m) owed by Thames Water Utiities Holdings
Limited, the immediate parent undertaking, on a loan of £1,180 Om, of which £28 2m (2009
£116 9m) 1s included within deblors amounts falling due within one year and £nil (2009 £nil)
within debtors amounts fallng due after more than one year
Repayment of the interest (£28 2m) will be received on 24 June 2010

= All other amounts are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand

13 Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£m £m

Amounts owed by group undertakings 1,180.0 1,180 0

Amounts owed by group undertakings are comprised of

= An unsecured loan of £1,1800m (2009 £1,180 Om) owed by Thames Water Utilities
Holdings Limited, the immed:ate parent undertaking The directors do not anticipate any
repayment of principal within the next twelve months

Interest 1s charged at Libor + 0 35%

14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£m £m

Secured bank loans 144.6 133 1

Obligations under finance leases 84 58

Trade creditors

- Operating 2471 179 6

- Capital 201.6 2079
Amounts owed to group undertakings

- Secured loan amounts 4000 2201

- Interest 90 8 8995

- Non interest 05 07

Amounts payable in respect of group relief - 256

Other taxation and social secunty payable 8.0 43

Accruals and deferred income 249.5 2441

1,350.5 1,110 7
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£m £m

Secured bank loans 619.7 423 8

Oblhgations under finance leases 195.3 2033
Amounis owed to group undertakings (see

below) 4,760.5 4,856 1

Accruals and deferred income 214.2 179 9

5,7897 5,663 1

Accruals and deferred income ncludes £36 6m (2009 £nil) of which £1 8m (2009 £mil) 1s included
within creditors amounis faling due within one year and £34 8m (2009 £mn) within creditors
amounts falling due after more than one year

The Company had a contractual agreement to receive compensation for incremental operating costs
(over a 30 year penod) resulting from the relocation of operational assets from land at Perry Oaks
During the year the Company received £37 7m as full and final settlement for the remaining amount
This 1s held in deferred income and released to turnover over the remaining 25 year term of the
onginal contract

31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
Amounts owed to group undertakings are:
Inter-company secured loans
- Within one year 4000 220 1
- After more than one year 4,760 5 4,856 1
5,1605 5,076 2
Non-loan amounts due within one year
- Interest 908 895
- Non interest 05 07
5,251 8 5,166 4

Secured bank loans

Each Obligor {the compantes within the Securtisation Group) has entered into the Secunity Trust and
Inter-creditor Deed ("STID") with the Security Trustee pursuant to which Thames Water Utilities
Holdings Limited will guarantee the obligations of each other Obligor under the finance documents
and the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries will guarantee the obligations of each other
under the finance documents, in each case to the Secunity Trustee

Amounts due to group undertakings In respect of non-interest amounts are unsecured, interest free
and payable on demand
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15  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)
Loan amounts owed to group undertakings include

= £2,883 1m (2009 £2,956 2m) owed to Thames Water Utlities Finance Limited, a subsiciary
undertaking, of which £250 Om (2009 £70 1m) s included within creditors due within one
year and £2,633 1m (2009 £2,886 1m) within creditors due after more than one year

= £2,1399m (2009 £1,982 7m) owed to Thames Water Utiities Cayman Finance Limited, a
subsidiary undertaking, of which £nil (2009 £nil) 1s included within creditors due within one
year and £2,139 9m (2009 £1,982 7m} within creditors due after more than one year

«  £150 Om (2009 £150 Om) of Subordinated debt owed to Thames Water Limited, a parent
undertaking of which £150 Om (2009 £150 Om) 1s included within creditors due within one
year and £nil {2009 £nil) within creditors due after more than one year

Details of matunty of loans falling due after more than one year are detailed in note 16
16 Financial instruments

FRS 25 requires the disclosure of the funding and treasury policy together wath further details on
financial assets and liabilities

Funding and treasury policy

The Company’s treasury operations are managed centrally by a small specialist team within the Thames
Water Group reporting directly to the Chief Financial Officer The treasury team manages the financing
(including debt, mterest costs and foreign exchange) for the Group Treasury policy Is focussed on
efficient and effective management of cash and financial resources within the Group

The Company’s funding policy i1s to maintain a broad portfolio of debt The debt arranged via Thames
Water Utihites Finance Limited and Thames Water Utlities Cayman Frnance Limited 1s diversified by
source and matunty in order to protect profits against risks ansing from adverse movements in interest
rates and currency exposures

Derivative financial instruments, including cross cumency swaps, interest rate swaps and index-linked
swaps, are employed to manage the interest rate, inflation and currency nsks ansing from the primary
financial Instruments used to finance the Company’s activities

Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the financial instruments disclosures

Interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities and assets

After taking into account the Company’s interest rate and currency swaps, the interest rate nsk profile of
the Company’s financial habilities and assets is as follows
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16 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Weighted
average penod
Total at Weighted  until maturity for
floating Total at Total book average which rate 1s
rates fixed rates * value interest rate fixed
2010 2008 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £m %o %  Years Years
Bank loans and
overdraft
- £ Sterling 397 2 467 8 3671 891 7643 556 9 24 69 171 374
Gther loans and
finance leases **
- £ Sterling 3503 2525 50139 50328 5,364 2 5,2853 51 43 238 24 2
747 5 7203 53810 5121961285 5,842 2 49 44 234 24 4

* Included in fixed rate labiities are index linked loans/swaps at a fixed coupon rate and RPI
Indexation

** Includes inter-company debt

The Company's interest rate and cross currency swaps convert £34 1m (2009 £39 5m) of floating
rate borrowing to fixed rate and £235 0m (2009 £261 9m) of fixed rate borrowing to floating rate
Cross currency swaps hedge currency nisk on £6328m (2009 £684 Om) of foreign currency
borrowing through conversion to Sterling Index Inked swaps of £894 1m (2009 £894 1m) swapped
Inter-company fixed rate debt to index inked debt  All swaps are included at their notional amount,
In additicn total accretion on the index linked swaps 15 £44 Om (2009 £12 7m)

Short-term floating rate loans bear interest at rates inked to LIBOR Base rate 1s the benchmark rate
for all cash at bank

Total at floating rates Total at book value
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2010 2009 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m

Short term deposits 573.2 3218 573.2 3216
Cash in bank and in hand 59 204 2 5.9 204 2
579.1 5258 579.1 525 8

Currency risk

The Company 15 not exposed to any significant currency nisk after taking the effects of its cross
currency swaps inte consideration
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16 Financial instruments (continued)

Fair values

Far value 1s the amount at which a financial mstrument could be exchanged in an arm’s length
transaction between informed and willing parties, other than in a forced or iquidation sale The table
below sets out a comparison of the book and far values of the Company’s financial instruments

Book value Fair value
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments
Financial assets
- Short term deposits 573.2 3216 573.2 3216
- Cash at bank and in hand 5.9 204 2 59 204 2
Financial habilities
- Bank loans (694.0) {541 9) {628.0) (549 6)
- Other loans and finance leases * (5,364.2) (5,285 3) (5,425.9) (5,3396)
Denvative financial instruments
- Interest rate swaps - - (6.4) (7 2)
- Cross currency swaps {25.0) (20) (35.7) 14
- Index linked swaps {45.3) (130) (283.8) (132 6)
- Forward currency options - - 0.6 -
Total {5,549.4) {5,316 4) {5,800.1) (5,501 8)

* Includes inter-company debt

Thames Water Utiities Limited does not itself hold bonds

Other loans include bonds 1ssued by group undertakings and external providers, which are publicly
traded and loaned to Thames Water Utiities Limited  Far values for these have been calculated
using the 31 March 2010 gquoted prices

Mark-to-market techniques {discounting expected cash flows at prevaling interest and exchange
rates) are employed in computing fair values for the remaining fixed rate borrowings and all
denvative financial nstruments

Book values of primary financial instruments include the effect of any hedging nstrument Therefore,
the effect of revaluing foreign currency borrowing at closing rates 1s included in the fair valuation
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16  Financial instruments (continued)

31 March 31 March
Maturities 2010 2009
£m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts
- Within one year 144.6 1331
- Between one and two years {6.4) 1450
- Between two and five years 20.4 56
- After more than five years 605.7 2732
764 3 556 9
Other loans inc inter-company
- Within cne year 400.0 2201
- Between one and two years 10.3 2500
- Between two and five years 549.6 4736
- After more than five years 4,200 6 41325
5,160.5 50762
Finance leases
- Within one year 8.4 58
- Between one and two years 9.4 83
- Between two and five years 138.5 956
- After more than five years 474 99 4
2037 2091
Total borrowing 6,128.5 5,842 2
Loans are repayable between 2010Q and 2062
Loans wholly repayable after more than five years, excluding finance leases are
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
Bank loans 6057 2732
Other loans including inter-company 4,214 7 4,132 6
4,820.4 4,405 8

Other secured loans repayable to Group undertakings in order of matunity include

£250m 4 75% Fixed rate bond due 2010
€500m 6 13% Fixed rate bond due 2013
£200m 4 90% Fixed rate bond due 2015
£400m 6 57% Fixed rate bond due 2018
£200m 5 05% Fixed rate bond due 2020
£225m 6 59% Fixed rate bond due 2021
£175m 3 38% Index linked bend due 2021
£330m 6 75% Fixed rate bond due 2028
£200m 6 50% Fixed rate bond due 2032

£600m 5 13% Fixed rate bond due 2037

£50m 3 85% Index linked bond due 2040
£50m 1 98% Index linked bond due 2042
£55m 2 09 Index inked bond due 2042
£100m 1 85% Index inked bond due 2047
£200m 1 82% Index inked bond due 2049
£300m 1 68% Index linked bond due 2053
£300m 1 68% Index linked bond due 2055
£200m 1 77% Index inked bond due 2057
$156m 3 month US$ libor + 0 95% Index li
bond due 2060

£350m 1 76% Index linked bond due 2062

nked

See note 15, page 51 for details of secured bank loans
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16 Financial instruments {continued)
Matunties (continued)

Loans repayable by instalments after more than five years hence are

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£m £m

Finance leases 474 99 3

The ranges of interest rates on outstanding loans are 1 23% to 8 35% (2009 1 56% to 8 35%)

These interest rates are those contracted on the underlying borrowing before taking account of
interest rate protection There are no interest free loans

Borrowing facilities
At 31 March 2010 the Company had access to commiited faciliies of £1,105 Om (2009 £1,055 Om)

of which £nil (2009 £nil} had been drawn at the balance sheet date, through its subsidiary company
Thames Water Utilites Cayman Finance Limited

17 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred Insurance

tax habiities Restructuring Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2009 926 3 537 93 226 1,0119
Utilised durnng the year - - &4) {13} 77N
Charge/{credit) to profit and loss
for the year 69 2 220 {0 6) 35 94 1
At 31 March 2010 995 5 75.7 23 248 1,098.3

The insurance provision i1s in respect of insurance clams notified A debtor in respect of these
obligations 1s included in note 12 (see page 49) representing the rembursement value from captive
and third party insurance companies

The restructuring provision principally relates to severance costs as a result of the Company's
restructurtng and reorganmisation This provision IS expected to be utiised over the next year

Other provisions principally relate to a number of legal clams agamnst the Company and represents

management’s best estimate of the value of settlement and costs It 1s estimated that some claims
will be settled in more than one year
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17 Provisions for liabilities and charges {continued)

The elements of deferred tax are as follows

31 March 31 March
Note 2010 2009
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 1,000.1 932 0
Other timing differences (4.6) (57)
995.5 926 3
Total deferred tax provision:
Included above 995.5 926 3
Deferred tax asset recognised on pension deficit 25 (41.8) (18 2)
953 7 908 1
At 31 March 2010 there are no amounts of deferred tax unprowvided for (2009 £nif)
The pension hability per note 25 1s shown net of deferred tax
18 Called up share capital
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1,029,050,000 (2009 1,029,050,000) ordinary shares of £1 each 1,029.0 1,029 0
19 Share premium account
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
Em £m
At 1 April and 31 March 100.0 100 0

Premium of 25p on 1ssue of 400 million £1 ordinary shares
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20 Profit and loss account

31 March 31 March

Note 2010 2009

£m £m

At 1 April 480 2 483 2
Profit for the year 3310 314 8
Dividends paid 8 {307 9) {222 0)
Retained profit 231 928
Actuarnal loss on pension scheme 25 (105.4) (133 0)
Movement on deferred tax relating to penston scheme 29.5 372
At 31 March including total pension liability 427.4 480 2

21 Reconciliation of movements in shareholder’s funds

31 March 31 March

Note 2010 2009

£m £m

At 1 April 1,609.2 1,612 2
Profit for the year 331.0 314 8
Diidends paid 8 (307 9) (222 Q)
Retained profit 23.1 928
Actuanal loss on pension scheme 25 {105.4) (133 0)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme 29.5 372
(52 8) 30

At 31 March including total pension hability 1,556 4 1,609 2

22 Capital commitments

31 March 31 March

2010 2009
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided 1,045 3 296 3

As part of its ongoing review of contractural arrangements, the Company has negotiated a number of
large capital contracts for the £4 9bn capital programme in AMP 5

In addition to these commitments, the Company has long-term capital investment plans to provide for
future growth
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23 Contingencies
There are claims arising In the normal course of business, which are in the process of negotiation

The Company has set aside amounts considered appropnate for all legal and simitar claims as per
note 17

24 Operating leases

At 31 March 2010 the Company was committed to making the following annual payments in respect of
non-cancellable operating leases

31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
£m £m £m £m

Leases which expire:

- Within one year 0.2 0.2 18 11
- Between one and five years 0.2 4.6 04 o8
- After more than five years 4.7 - 47 -
51 4.8 69 19

See note 16 ‘Financial instruments’ on page 52 for further information regarding obligations under
finance leases

25 Pension schemes

Pension arrangements for the majority of the Company's employees are of the defined benefit type,
funded through two Group pension schemes, Thames Water Pension Scheme (“TWPS") and Thames
Water Mirror Image Pension Scheme ("TWMIPS") (see table below for detals of each schemes’
respective deficit or surplus), covering employees within the Thames Water Group, whose assets are
held separately from those of the Group in iIndependently administered funds

The Company’s pension arrangements are of the group multi-employer scheme nature, such that the
Company’s pension schemes’ assets and liabilities are included with those of other companies in the
Thames Water Group The Company contributes the vast majority of the contrnbutions into the
schemes and any consequence of there being a surplus or a deficit in the schemes s felt by the
Company Accordingly, the directors have decided it 1s appropriate to recognise the net deficit of the
two Group pension schemes within these financia! statements

The service cost of the Company, as included in the profit and loss account, represents the net of the
total service cost of the Group schemes and the pension contributions made by the other group
companies into the schemes in the financial period

In addition to the ongoing cost of the UK Pension arrangements, the Company operates amangements
under which it augments benefits on retrement These augmentations are funded by way of addiional
employer contributions to the schemes In the year ended 31 March 2010 payments amounted {o
£33m (2009 £2 1m)

The latest full actuanal valuation was undertaken as at December 2007 This valuation has been
updated at 31 March 2010 by Mercer Limited (Mercer) (2009 Hewiit Associates Limited)
independent and professionally qualified consulting actuaries, using revised assumptions that are
consistent with the requirements of FRS 17 and shown in this note to the accounts

The recent exceptional volatiity on the credit markets has impacted the pension valuation as
calculated under the requirements of FR317
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25 Pension schemes (continued)

Thames Water Group has taken advice from Mercer in respect of the funding position of the Group
pension schemes

Net liability by pension schemes before deferred tax

31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
Thames Water Pension Scheme
Deficit In scheme (166.6) {91 9)
Thames Water Mirror Image Scheme
Surplus In scheme 17.4 268
Liability before deferred tax asset {(149.2) (65 1)

The assumptions used In the valuation of assets and liabilities of the schemes are the same for both
schemes, therefore the following tables are for the combined values for both schemes

Reconciliation of funded status to balance sheet:

31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 1,317.4 1,040 3
Present value of scheme liabihties {1,466.6) (1,105 4)
Deficit in scheme (149.2} (65 1)
Liability recognised on the balance sheet (149.2) (65 1)
Deferred tax asset 418 18 2
Net pension liability {107.4) (46 9)
Movement in the present value of schema liabihties:
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
Opening present value of scheme habihties 1,105 4 1,098 9
Current service cost Thames Water Utilittes Limited 176 153
Current service cost Cther Thames Water Group participating
compantes 14 06
Interest cost 72.7 745
Contribution by scheme participants 0.2 54
Actuanal losses/(gains) on scheme liabilities 326.0 (37 7)
Net benefit paid out {60 0) 537
Termination pension cost 33 21
Closing present value of scheme liabilities 1,466 6 1,105 4
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25 Pension schemes (continued)

Movement in fair value of scheme assets:

31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m

Opening fair value of scheme assets 1,040 3 1,214 8
Expected return on scheme assets 57.9 716
Actuarial gamns/{losses) on scheme assets 220.6 {250 4)
Contnbutions by the employer 53.7 499
Contributions by Other Thames Water Group parhicipating
companies 14 06
Contributions by scheme participants 02 54
Termination pension costs 3.3 21
Net benefits paid out (60 0) (53 7)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 1,317.4 1,040 3
Expense recognised in the profit and loss account:

31 March 31 March

2010 2009
£m £m

Current service cost 176 153
Interest cost 727 745
Expected return on scheme assets (57.9) (71 6)
Total expense recognised in the profit and loss account 324 18 2

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the profit and loss account:

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£m £m

Operating costs staff costs 176 163
Other finance expense 148 29
Total expense charged in the profit and loss account 324 18 2

Analysis of amount recognised in the Statement of total recognised gains and losses.

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£m £m

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 2206 (250 4)

Experience losses arising on the scheme liabilities - (44 3)
Changes in assumphons underlying the present value of scheme

habilities (326 0) 820

Adjustment relating to irrecoverable surplus - 797

Actuarial loss recognised in the Statement of total recognised

_gains and losses {105.4) (133 0)
Cumulative amount of losses recognised in the Statement of total

recognised gains and losses {309.3) {203 9)
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25 Pension schemes (continued)
Fair value of scheme assets and return on these assets:

The farr value of the assets held by the pension schemes, the long-term expected rate of return on
each class of assets and the average expected long-term rate of retumn obtained by weighting the
individual rates in accordance with the anticipated balance in the schemes’ investment portfolio are
shown in the following table

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
Long-term Long-term
expected rate expected rate
of Value of Value
return £m return £m
Equities 8.5% 4359 8 0% 3603
Bonds 5.5% 231.0 5 5% 2193
Gilts 4 254 5% 530.9 375-4 0% 3980
Property 7.5% 81.1 7 0% 595
Qther assets 4 5% 38.5 4 0% 32
Weighted average expected long-term
rate of returnftotal fair value of assets 61% 1,317.4 57% 1,040 3

Thames Water employs a building block approach in determining the fong-term rate of return on
pension ptan assets Historical markets are studied and assets with higher volatiity are assumed to
generate higher returns consistent with widely accepted capital market principles The assumed
long-term rate of return on each asset class 1s set out within this note  The overall expected rate of
return on assets 1s then denved by aggregating the expected return for each asset class over the
actual asset allocation for the schemes

The main financial assumptions used for FRS 17 purposes are as follows:

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

Price inflation 3.5% 30%
Salary increases 4.5% 4 0%
Pension increases 3.5% 30%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.6% 6 7%

In valuing the liabilites of the pension schemes at 31 March 2010, mortalty assumptions have been
made as indicated below These mortality assumptions are based on the recent actual mortality
expenence of members within the schemes and the assumptions also allow for future mortality
improvements

The assumptions are that TWMIPS members and TWPS members who joined the Scheme before 1
January 1995 who retire in 2028 at age 60 will live on average for a further 26 years (2009 26 years)
after retirement if they are male and for a further 28 years (2009 28 years) after retrement If they
are female TWPS members who joined the Scheme after 1 January 1985 who retire in 2028 at age
60 are assumed to live on average for a further 28 years (2009 28 years) after retirement If they are
male and for a further 29 years (2009 29 years) after retrement If they are female

In addition, it 1s assumed that TWMIPS pensioners and TWPS pensioners who joined the Scheme
before 1 January 1995 and are currently aged 60 will ive on average for a further 24 years (2008 24
years) If they are male and a further 26 years (2009 26 years) If they are female TWPS pensioners
who joined the Scheme after 1 January 1995 and are currently aged 60 are assumed to live on
average for a further 26 years (2009 26 years) If they are male and for a further 28 years (2009 28
years) if they are female
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25 Pension schemes (continued)

History of fair value of assets, present value of liabilities, (deficit)/surplus in scheme and

experience gains and losses:

|
Year to !

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2008 2007 2005
£m £m £m £m £m
Farr value of scheme assets 1,3174 1,040 3 1,2148 1,246 4 1,154 9
Present value of scheme liabilihes (1,466 6) {1,105 4) {1,098 9) (1,205 9) {1,229 1}
(Deficit)/surplus in scheme {149 2) (65 1) 1159 405 {74 2)
Experience adjustments:
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March Year to
2010 2009 2008 2007 2005
£m £m £m £m £m
Expenence gains/{losses) on scheme
assets
Amounts 2206 (250 4) (1027 71 98 4
Percentage of schems assets 16 7% 24 1% 8 5% 0 6% 8 5%
Experience (losses)/gains on scheme
liabihities
Amounts - (44 3) (54) 19 247
Percentage of scheme labilites - 4 0% 0 5% 10% 20% ‘
Total amount recognised in the Statement of }
total gains and losses
Amounts (105 4) (133 0) 39 812 349 ‘
Percentage of present value of scheme labihbes 12% 12 0% 04% 6 7% 2 8%
\

The Kemble Water Holdings Limited group expects to contribute approximately £602m to the
defined benefit schemes in the next financial year

26 Intermediate and ultimate parent company and controlling party

Thames Water Utlites Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom 1s the

immediate parent company

Kemble Water Finance Limited, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom is an intermediate
parent company and the smallest group to consolidate these financial statements

The directors consider that Kemble Water Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the United
Kingdom, 1s the ultmate and controting party and the largest group to consolidate these financial

statements

Coples of the accounts of all of the above companies may be obtaned from The Company
Secretary's Office, Thames Water Group, Clearwater Court, Vastern Road, Reading, Berkshire, RG1

8DB
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26 Intermediate and ultimate parent company and controlling party
(continued)

Kemble Water Holdings Limited 1s owned by a consortium of investors led by Macquarie European
Infrastructure Funds 1 and 2 (“MEIF 1 & 2"), wholesale investment funds which make long-term
mvestments n infrastructure and related businesses located across Europe The directors do not
consider there to be an ultimate parent or controlling party Kemble Water Holdings Limited 1s the
largest group to consolidate these financial statements

The Company's other shareholders are international penston funds and institutional investors
MEIF 1 & 2 invests in businesses which

s Prowvide an essential service to the community
+ Have a strong competitive position
= Generate stable cash flows over the long term

MEIF 1 & 2 aim to deliver sustainable cash yields and moderate capital growth from their diversified
portfolios of qualty infrastructure investments

MEIF 1 & 2 are managed by Macquare Capital Funds (Europe) Limited (“MCFEL") MCFEL 1s a
wholly owned member of the Macquarie Group, and 1s authonsed and regulated by the Financial
Services Authonty under the UK Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 MCFEL s resourced by
executives of Macquarie Capital Funds
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Explanatory note

The regulatory accounts and required regulatory infformation on pages 66 to 90 are provided to
comply with Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment of Thames Water Utilities Limited as a
water and sewerage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991

The regulatory accounts are prepared in accordance with the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
("RAG's") 1Issued by Ofwat

There are differences between UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the RAG's Where
different treatments are specified under each, the RAGs take precedence

The regulatory financial statements should be read In conjunction with the statutory Annual report
and financial statements ("AR&A"} The AR&A include the Chief Executive Officer's business review
{pages 3 to 19) In addition the Dwectors’ report (pages 20 to 23) includes a statement as to the
disclosure of informatien to auditors (page 23), the dividend policy of the Company which also
applies to the appointed business {page 20) and information In respect of the Company’s charitable
donations {(page 23), which details amounts given to chantable trusts for customers who were unable
to settle their outstanding water bills

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for regulatory information

Further to the requrements of Company law, the directors are required to prepare accounting
statements which comply with the requirements of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment of
the Company as a water and sewerage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 and
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by Ofwat

This additionally requires the directors to

s Confirm that, in their opinion, the Company has sufficient financial resources and facilities,
management resources and methods of planning and internal control for the next 12 months

o Confirm that, in therr opimion, the Company has sufficient rights and assets, which would
enable a special admmistrator to manage the affarrs, business and property of the Company

» Confirm that, in ther opinion, the Company has contracts with any associate Company with
the necessary provisions and requirements concerning the standard of service to be supplied
to ensure comphance with the Company's obligations as a water and sewerage undertaker

s Report to Ofwat changes in the Company's activities, which may be matenal in relation to
the Company’s ability to finance its regulated activities

s Undertake transactions entered into by the appointed business, with or for the benefit of
associated companies or other businesses or activities of the appointed business, at arm’s
length

 Keep proper accounting records, which comply with Condition F

These responsibilites are additional to those already set out in the statutory financial statements
Ring fencing
In the opinion of the directors, the Company was in comphance with paragraph 3 1 of Condition K of

the Instrument of Appointment at the end of the financial year This relates to the availability of rights
and assets in the event of a special administration order
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Regulatory historical cost profit and loss account for the year

ended 31 March

2010 2009
Non- Non-
Appointed Appointed Appointed  Appointed
business business Total business bustness Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover (Note 2) 1,593.1 30.7 16238 1,537 0 212 1,558 2
Operating costs (712.3) {10.9) (723.2) (716 7) (11 8) (728 5)
Histonical cost depreciation 1 {229.2) {0.3) (229.5) (224 1) (03) (2244)
Operating iIncome 37.9 - 379 82 - 82
Operating profit 689 5 195 709.0 604 4 91 6135
Other expense {14 8) - (14.8) (29) - {29)
Net interest payable (240.4) {0.2) (240.6) {176 0) 05 (175 5)
Profit on ordinary
activities before taxation 4343 19.3 453.6 4255 96 4351
Taxation
- Current tax (42.1) {5.49) {47.5) {23 8) 27) (26 5)
- Deferred tax (75.1) - {75.1) {93 8) - (93 8)
{117.2) {5.4) {122 €} {117 8) 27y (1203
Profit for the year 31741 13.9 331.0 3079 69 314 8
Diwvidend {281.2) {26.7) {307.9) {215 1) {6 9) (222 0)
Retained profit/{loss) for
the year 35.9 {12 8) 23.1 928 - 92 8

1 The histonical cost depreciation has been analysed out separately 1n order to comply with the
presentational requirements of RAG 3 06

Statement of total recognised gains and losses (historical cost
accounting) for the appointed business for the year ended 31

March
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m

Profit for the year 3174 3079

Actuanal loss on pension schemes {105.4) (1330)
Deferred tax relating to actuarial loss 295 372

Total recognised gains in the year 241.2 212 1
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Regulatory historical cost balance sheet at 31 March

2010 2009 (restated *)
Non- Non-
Appointed Appeinted Appointed  Apponted
business business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 7,5325 89 7,541 4 1,086 2 39 7,0901
Investmenis - other 01 - 01 01 - 01
Total fixed assets 7,5326 89 75415 7,086 3 39 7,082
Current assets
Stocks 17 - 17 61 - 61
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 599 1 39 603 0 597 1 89 606 0
Cebtors amounts falling due after more than
oneg year 1,180 0 - 1,180 0 1,180 0 - 1,1800 ‘
1,779 1 39 1,783 0 1,777 1 89 17860 |
Cash at bank and in hand 59 - 59 204 2 - 2042
Short term deposits 5732 - 5732 3216 - 3216
Infrastructure renewals prepayment - - - 337 - 337
Total current assets 2,3659 39 2,369 8 23427 89 23516
Creditors amounts falling due within one
year
Creditors (776 9) (12 8) (789 7) (751 7) - {751 Ty
Borrowings (553.0) - (553 0) (359 0) - (359 0)
Infrastructure renewals accrual (9.0) - (8 0) - - -
Total creditors (1,338.9) (128) (1,351 7) (1,110 7) - (1,1107)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 1,027 0 89y 10181 1,232 0 89 12408
Total assets less current liabilities 8,559 6 - 8,559 6 8,318 3 128 8,3311 !
i
Creditors amounts falling due after more |
than one year |
Borrowings (5,575 5) - (55755) (5,483 2) - {5,4832)
Qther creditors (77 3) - {77 3) {36 5} - {36 5) '
Total creditors (5,652 B) - (5,652 8) (5519 7) - (55197
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred tax provision {995 5) - {995 5) (926 3) - (926 3)
Deferred income - grants and contnbutions (144 7) - (144 7) (143 4) - (143 4)
Other provisions (102 B) - (102 8) (85 6) - (85 6)
Post employment labilites (107 4) - {107 4) (46 9) - {46 G}
Net assets employed 1,556 4 - 41,5564 1,596 4 128 16092
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 1,029 0 - 1,029 0 1,026 0 - 1,0290
Share premium 1000 - 1000 1000 - 1000
Profit and loss account 427 4 - 427 4 467 4 128 4802
Capital and reserves 1,556 4 - 1,556 4 1,596 4 128 1,6092

* The Company has reclassified Deferred income — grants and contributions at 31 March 2009
{£36 5m) to Other creditors within Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year to classify
SWAP interest premium (£10 1m) and requisitioning income (£26 4m) in accordance with the
requirements of RAG3 06
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Historical cost reconciliation between statutory and regulatory

accounts at 31 March

2010
Statutory Regulatory Explanation
UK GAAP RAG 3
£m £m
Profit and loss account
Operating profit 6711 7090 The difference of £37 9m Is due to the statutory
accounts profit on sale of assels 15 shown
below operating result Ofwat accounting
gudelines state that this should be classified
within gperating costs as ‘operating income’ for
regulatory accounts
Profit before taxation 453 6 4536 Profit before taxatton 1s unaffected by this re-
classification
Balance sheet
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets {net book value) 7,5324 7,5414 The difference of £9 0m 1s atinbutable to the
infrastructure renewals (accrual) (2009 £33 7m
prepayment) as this 15 excluded from the fixed
assets net book wvalue in the regulatory
accounts Thisis in ine with RAG 3 06 as FRS
15 15 not apphed for infrastructure renewals
accounting for regulatory accounting purposes
For more detall see page 76
Current assets
Infrastructure renewals prepayment - (90) The dfference of £90m reflects the
reclassificaton  of infrastructure  renewals
accrual as descnbed above
Short-term and long-term creditors
Deferred income — grants and contnbutions 1447 - Deferred grants and contributions of £144 7m
(2009 £143 4 m) within the statutory accounts
are analysed between creditors amounts falling
due wathin one year (£7 8m) and creditors
amounts faling due after more than one year
(£136 9m) This s In contrast with the
regulatory accounts, which shows total deferred
grants and contributons within provisions for
llabihities and charges
Provision for labiites and charges - 1447
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Additional information required by the licence

Basis of preparation

In accordance with Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment, these regulatory financial
statements have been prepared to show separately in respect of the appointed business, non-
appointed busmness and total business, a profit and loss account and balance sheet prepared on a
historical cost basis

In accordance with the requirements of FRS 18, the directors review the Company’s accounting
policies to ensure that they remain the most appropriate to its particular circumstances for the
purpose of giving a true and farr view

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention and,
except for the classification of profit on the sale of fixed assets as explaned in note (a) below, the
treatment of infrastructure renewals expenditure as explained in note (b) below and the treatment of
certain capital contributions as explained In note (c) below, have been prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006 The departures from applicable UK Accounting Standards are necessary
to comply with regulatory reporting requirements laid down by the Water Services Regulation
Authonty (“Ofwat”)

Changes to accounting policies

The same accounting policies used for the penod ended 31 March 2009 have been applied In these
financial statements excepted as noted below

The Company has reclassified Deferred income — grants and contributions at 31 March 2009
{£36 5m) to Other creditors within Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year to classify
SWAP interest premium (£10 1m) and requisihoning income (£26 4m) in accordance with the
requirements of RAG3 06

Infrastructure renewals charge
Principles underpinning infrastructure renewals charge:

For the first three years of the AMP 4 perod, the infrastructure renewals charge in the Company’s
statutory and regulatory accounts was based upon the medium term wview of infrastructure
maintenance required to achieve stable serviceability by March 2010 In the Company's June
Return 2008 it was stated that the directors’ view would be revised following completion of therr
detalled long-term assessment of maintenance requirements undertaken as part of the Business
Plan submussion for the 2009 Price Review

Following the completion of the Company's assessment of the infrastructure renewals expenditure
requirement to the end of AMP 7 for the Final Business Plan, the Company now considers that it
would be appropriate to reflect in the Company’s regulatory and statutory accounts for 2009 and
2010 an infrastructure renewals charge consistent with its expenditure plans for the AMP 5 to AMP 7
{2010-2025) periods

{a) Profit on sale of fixed assets
Profit and loss on sale of fixed assets has been included within operating profit, as operating income,
in accordance with RAG 3 This represents a departure from FRS 3 as adopted in the Company's

31 March 2010 statutory financial statements where profit and loss on sale of fixed assets i1s shown
after operating profit
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Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Infrastructure renewals expenditure

Infrastructure renewals expenditure ("IRE") has been accounted for in accordance with RAG 3 n
these financial statements and i1s consistent with the reporting of IRE n the Company’s regulatory
histonical cost financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009 Accordingly, IRE net of
depreciation has been included within debtors

This treatment of reporting IRE net of depreciation within debtors in the regulatory historical cost
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010 represents a departure from the accounting
policy adopted in the Company’s 31 March 2010 statutory financial statements for infrastructure
renewals expenditure and renewals accounting per FRS 15, which requires this amount to be
ncluded within fixed assets

Reconciiation to the tangible fixed assets shown in the statutory financial statements with the
regulatory historical cost financial statements 1s shown on page 76

{c) Capital contributions

Capital contributions received In respect of infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of
fixed assets This 1s not In accordance with Schedule 4 to the Companies Act 2006, which requires
fixed assets to be stated at their purchase price without deduction of contnbutions, with the latter
accounted for as deferred Income This departure from the requirement of the Act 1s, In the opinion
of the directors, necessary for the financial statements to give a true and farr view because
infrastructure assets do not have a determinable finite life  Accordingly, related capital contributions
would not be recognised in the profit and loss account

(d) Allocation of costs

All direct costs are allocated immediately to the activity to which they relate Indirect costs and
overheads are apportioned on an appropriate basis to reflect the incidence of such costs Indirect
costs include administrative expenses and the provision of common services

Direct costs attnbutable to the provision of services other than the Appointed Business are
separately allocated and wdentfied as 'Non-Appointed' Indrrect costs, relating to non-appointed
activities, are recovered as a fixed percentage of direct costs based upon the analysis of operating
costs

(e) Revenue

There are no differences between the accounting policy for revenue under the statutory accounts
and the policy for the regulatory accounts
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Link between directors’ remuneration and standards of regulatory
performance

Compensation & HR commiittee

The Company operates a Compensation & HR Committee (“*Commitiee”) which broadly functions as
both a remuneration and a nomination committee It comprises four Non-Executive Diractors, one of
whom 15 independent, and 1s chared by Martin Stanley The other members are Willem Smit
{independent Non-Executive Director), Sir Peter Mason KBE and Chnistopher Deacon

The Committee’s responsibilities include, but are not imited to, making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’'s executive remuneration policy and directors' terms of appointment  During
the year, the Committee advised the Board of Dhrectors and received advice and input from varnous
Directors and specialist staff within the Company, including the Chief Executive Officer and the
Director of Human Resources (both of whom are invited to attend from time to tme) No individuals
are involved in the determmation of their own remuneration

To ensure that the Company's remuneration practices are competitive, the Committee has access to
detalled external research on market data and trends from experienced specialist remuneration
consultants  In August 2009, the Committee appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as remuneration
advisers to the Committee As part of therr appointment, they were asked to undertake a complete
review of the remuneration package for the executive team

The Committee considers carefully the blend of remuneration linked to regulatory performance and
remuneration linked to other performance measures in order to produce well balanced short-term
and long-term incentive plans leading te value creation and a high gualty service to custorners

Remuneration policy

The Committee bases its decision-making with respect to remuneration policy on a number of
underlying principles, which can be summarised as follows

= Arrangements should attract, retain, motivate and reward high calibre directors and executives

»* Packages should be aligned with the interests of the Company's stakeholders, in particular its
shareholders and its customers

= Packages should be commensurate with those provided by other companies of similar size and
complexity, taking into account indivtdual contribution and experience

= Policy should establish firm links between an executive’s performance and remuneration and
between the Company's performance and the executive's total remuneration

» Packages should include a mix of basic salary plus performance related incentives Further
detal 1s inciuded within the bonus section on page 72 which indicates how Directors’ pay is
linked to standards of performance

The Committee will continue to review arrangements regularly to ensure that they remain effective

and appropnate to the Company's circumstances and prospects, and to monitor the level of potential
awards
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Remuneration of executive directors
The remuneration arrangements for executive directors comprise the following elements

- Base salary and benefits

- Bonuses

- Long Term Incentive Schemes (LTIS)
- Post retirement benefits

Details of each of the above elements are set out on the following pages
Base salaries and benefits

Base salaries are normally rewiewed annually with any changes taking effect from the
commencement of the financial year Base salaries are a fixed sum payable monthly

In 2009, it was agreed that, in the light of the current economic circumstances, no pay rnise would be
awarded to the executive directors As part of the review of the executive remuneration package, the
existing Executive Directors received a pay increase on 1 April 2010

In addition to base salary, the Executive Directors receive a car or cash allowance, private medical
Insurance, a defined benefit pension scheme, life assurance and 25 days’ holiday All of these
benefits have been reviewed in 2010 to ensure that the overall remuneration package 1s competitive
agamnst companies of a similar size and complexity

None of the base salaries or benefits are linked to business or individual perfformance

Bonuses

Executive Directors are eligible to participate in bonus schemes, which are designed to motivate
them to achieve the Company’s key operational and strategic cbjectives

The amount of any annual incentive award I1s determined by and at the discretion of the Commiitee
taking account of and making a judgement in the context of the balance of all matters relevant to
overall perfformance The Kemble Water Holdings Group (“Group”) Board believes that this 1s the
most appropriate means of aigning directors’ remuneration to performance

Executive directors’' annual bonus plan measures 2009/10

The 2009/10 annual bonus plan amed to reward significant improvement in the Group’s financial
performance The financial measures used in the annual bonus plan for the CEO and CFO are
Group capital expenditure, Group operating cash flow, Group cash flow before funding and Group
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) targets The financital metrics
used in the COO's annual bonus plan are net cperating costs, Group Earnings Before Interest, Tax,
Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA), Group capital expenditure and Group operating cashflow
These targets were selected as being the most critical for the arganisation during 2009/10

In addition, there 1s a financial underpin on the personal element of the 2009/10 bonus 1n that no

payment 1s made against the personal element of the annual bonus unless the Group cashflow
before funding business plan target 1s achieved
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Although most of the annual bonus financial targets were based on Group performance, these are
largely determined by the financial performance of the regulated business Only Siephen Shine had
a specific financial target relating to operating expenditure in the regulated business

The bonus was paid on the basis of performance aganst financial measures and personal
objectives As the main focus of the Group 1s now on the regulatory business a percentage of the
bonus relating to financial measures 1s deemed to be n relation to regulatory performance and one
of the personal objectives for Stephen Shine and Mark Braithwaite related to OPA which 1s also
inked to regulatory performance In recognition of the best ever financial and operational
performance of the Group in the year, the following bonuses were pad to directors in relation to
regulatory measures

Bonus related to regulatory measures

Martin Baggs £157,500
David Owens -
Mark Braithwaite £237.,708
Stephen Shine £305,625

Executive directors’' annual bonus plan measures 2010/11

The 2010/11 annual bonus plan will mirror the 2009/10 plan Maintaining the OPA score will form a
part of the personal objectives The gateway on the personal element of the bonus will continue to
be a Group cashflow before funding target

Long Term Incentive Schemes ("LTIS")

As an element of the retention strategy, the Company’s executive directors and senior management
team, are from time to time invited to participate in an LTIS There 1s no automatic right to participate
and each year executives and managers are selected at the discretion of the Board

LTIS 2007

As a result of new ownership, an LTIS was introduced in May 2007 Under this scheme, a
conditional award of cash units representing 25% of the executive directors 2007/08 annual bonus
could be made to participants The awards would be deferred for a two-year period which ended on
31 March 2010, at which point they vested and payments were made, based on an assessment of
performance against regulatory targets Participants had to continue to be employed untit the
vesting date, or have left employment due to a ‘good-leaver’ reason to receive the award at vesting,
otherwise the award was forfeted Between 100% and 400% of the deferred cash award could vest
based on performance against the “Overall Performance Assessment” (OPA) score

Based on the Company's estmated end of year OPA outcome 400% of the deferred cash award
vested on 31 March 2010
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The following table provides a breakdown of the payments and scheme interests under the LTIS
2007 in respect of Executive directors who served during the year ending 31 March 2010

Director Number of
£1 cash Awards Number of £1 cash
units at Accrued Awarded vesting units at
1 Apnil 2009  during year duning year  during year 31 March 2010
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Martin Baggs - - - - -
David Owens - - - - -
Mark Braithwaite 912 713 - (162 5) -
Stephen Shine 143 2 230 9 - (374 1) -

LTIS 2008

A new, stand-alone LTIS was operated in 2008, in which the Executive Directors will participate The
plan period will run from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2011 and payment will be made in July 2011
following Board approval of the audited accounts The plan will be based on four cumulative
financial measures, being Group EBITDA, Group Cash Flow Before Funding, Distributions and
Group Capital Expenditure These measures were selected as being crntical for the Group's value
creation

The measures will be reviewed annually to make any required amendments, taking into account
business acquisitions, capital restructuring, long-term debt draw-downs and any refinancing of the
Company (including fees paid for any refinancing)

Payment will be made in full if all four measures have been achieved over each of the three financial
years which form the performance period No payment will be made under the plan if one or more
measures have not been achieved None of this is linked specifically to regulatory performance

LTIS 2010

A new five year LTIS 1s being introduced in April 2010 and participants will be selected from key
strategic positions across the Company The plan pernod will run from 1 Apnl 2010 to 31 March
2015 The plan focuses on the key objectives for the next regulatory period which are critical to the
Company’s business plan as follows

Measurement Area Overall Weighting
Financial Performance Delivering on core financials over AMP5 | 40%
Sustainability Delivering on measures that ensure a | 40%
sustainable future and success beyond
AMPS
Regulatory and Customer Improving the Company's scores under | 20%
Ofwat's core measures

Payments under the plan will start in 2013 and will continue untl 2017
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Service contracts

Reflecting current market practice, the Executive Directors do not hold service contracts that provide
for a notice penod longer than one year It 1s not the Committee’s intention to recommend the
appeointment of any new Executive Directors with contracts that provide for a longer notice period

The Committee endorses the principle of mitigation of loss on early termination of a service contract
and generally seeks to achieve that objective where possible and appropnate In the event that the
Company wished to terminate an Executive Director's contract other than in circumstances where
the Company 1s enhtled to summanly dismiss an Executive Director, 1t would need to give either 12
months’ notice or make a payment in lieu of salary and benefits

Recognition of significant achievements

On 2 December 2009, David Owens left the Company and a payment was made to him on leaving
office in recognition of stgnificant achievements over the previous three years (see note 5, page 44)
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statements and their regulatory financial equivalents:

Infra-
Other structure
assets assets Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 31 March 2010 as per statutory accounts (FRS 15) 75528 4,174 0 11,726 8
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitalised in previous years (restated
see below) - (861 3) (861 3)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitalised in the year - (71 3) (71 3)
Disposals in pnor years - 09 09
Cost at 31 March 2010 per regulatory accounts (RAG 3) 7,552.8 3,242 3 10,795 1
Capital contributions
Contnbutions at 31 March 2010 as per statutory accounts (FRS 15) - 589 1 589 1
Contnbutions at 31 March 2010 as per regulatory accounts (RAG 3) - 589 1 589 1
Depreciation
At 31 March 2010 as per statutory accounts (FRS 15} 2,664 6 940 7 36053
Infrastructure renewals charge in previous years - (827 6) (827 6)
Infrastructure renewals charge in the year - (114 0) (114 0)
Disposals in pnor years - 09 09
Depreciation at 31 March 2010 per regulatory accounts (RAG 3) 2,664 6 - 2,664 6
Net book value
At 31 March 2010 as per statutory accounts (FRS 15) 4,888 2 2,644 2 75324
Adjustment for infrastructure renewals accounting (see below) - 90 90
At 31 March 2010 per reg_ulatory accounts (RAG 3) 4,888.2 2,653 2 7,541 4

Adjustment for infrastructure renewals accounting:

Infra-structure

assets
£m

RAG 3 net infrastructure renewals reclassification:
Infrastructure renewals prepayment at 31 March 2009 337
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitalised in the year 713
Infrastructure renewals charge Iin the year {114 Q)
Infrastructure renewals accrual at 31 March 2010 (9.0)
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business for the year ended 31 March

31 March 31 March
Note 2010 2009
£m £m

Turnover 2 1,593 1 1,537 0
Current cost operating costs 3 (1,044.3) (1,039 6)
Operating income 2 376 78
Working capital adjustment 2 12 84
Current cost operating profit 5876 5136
Net interest (255.2) (178 9)
Financing adjustment 11.0 5356
Current cost profit on ordinary activities before 343.4 3882
taxation
Taxation

- Current tax (42 1) (23 8)

- Deferred tax {75 1) (93 8)
Current cost profit attributable to shareholders 226.2 2706
Dividends (281.2) (215 1)
Current cost (loss)/profit retained {55.0) 555
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Regulatory current cost balance sheet for the appointed business

at 31 March
31 March 31 March
Note 2010 2009
£m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4c 51,240 5 48,808 9
Third party contributions since 31 March 1990 (934.9) (872 3)
50,305 6 47,936 6
Working capital 5 (262.5) (257 4)
Cash 59 204 2
Short term deposits 573.2 3216
Infrastructure renewals (accrual}prepayment (9.0) 337
Net operating assets 50,613.2 482387
Non operating assets and liabilities
Borrowings (553 0) (359 0)
Non-trade debtors 157.9 2128
Non-trade creditors due within one year (78.5) (115 8)
investment — loan to group company 1,180.0 1,180 0
Investments — other 01 01
Corporation tax recevable 13.0 119
Total non operating assets and liabilities 719.5 9300
Creditors' amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings {5,575.5) (5483 2)
Other creditors (77.3) {36 5)
Total creditors falling due after more than one year {5,652.8) (5,519 7)
Provisions for liabihties and charges
Deferred tax provision {995.5) {926 3)
Post employment hability (107.4) (46 9)
Other provisions {(102.8) (85 6)
Total provisions (1,205.7) (1,058 8)
Net assets 44,474.2 42,590 2
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1,029.0 1,029 0
Share premium 1000 1000
Profit and loss account {765 3) (634 3)
Current cost reserve 5] 44,110.5 42,0955
Total capital and reserves 44,474.2 42,590 2

The notes on pages BO to 90 form part of these regulatory current cost financial statements

The regulatory current cost financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 June

2010
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2010 2009
Non- Non-
Appointed Appointed Appointed  Appointed
Notes business business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Net cash inflow from operating activities (a) 874 2 376 1,0118 q058 94 9152
Returns on investments and servicing of
finance
Interest receved 2005 - 2005 633 05 638
Interest paid {297 9) {(02) {298 1) {208 8) - (208 8)
Interest element of finance lease payments {10 5) - {10 5) {12 7) - (127)
Net cash outflow from returns on {107 9) (02} {108 1) (158 2} 05 (157 7)
investments and servicing of finance
Taxation paid (70 6} (54 {76 0) (67 5) 27) {70 2)
Capital expenditure and financial
investment
Gross cost of purchased fixed assets (719 4) {53) {724 7) (915 2) (03) (9155)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure {13 - 71 3) (104 8) - (104 8)
Receipt of grants and contributions 431 - 431 3241 - 321
Disposal of fixed assets v g - 399 87 - 87
Net cash outflow from investing
activities (707 7) {53) (713 0) (979 2) (03) (9795)
Equity dividends paid (281 2) 267) (307 9) {215 1) (69) (2220)
Management of hquid resources
Net cash inflow from management of iquid
resources {251 6) - {251 6) {306 0) - {306 0)
Net cash outflow before financing {444 8) - {444 8) {820 2) - (820 2)
Financing
Capital element in finance lease
rebate/(payment) (5 4) - (54) 46 - 46
New loans 4547 - 4547 1,3203 - 13203
Repayment of loans {202 8) - {202 8) {366 3) - (366 3)
Net cash inflow from financing (b} 2465 - 2465 9586 - 958 6
{Decrease)/Increase in cash (b} (198 3) - (198 3} 1384 - 1384
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(a) Reconciliation of current cost operating profit to net cash flow from
operating activities for the appointed business

31 March 31 March

2010 2009

£m £m

Current cost operating profit 587.6 5136
Working capital adjustment (1.2) {8 4)
Movement in working capital (excluding short term capital creditors) 114 129
Current cost depreciation 331 8 3240
Current cost profit on sale of fixed assets (37.6) (7 8)
Infrastructure renewals charge 114.0 114 0
Other non-cash profit and loss tems (including provisions) {31.8) (42 5)
Net cash flow from operating activities 974 2 905 8

{b) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt for the Appointed
business

Note 31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
(Decrease)/increase in cash in the penod (198 3) 1384
Cash inflow from increase in iquid resources 2516 3060
Cash inflow from movement in net debt and financing {246 5) {958 6)
Increase In net debt resulting from cashflows {193 2) {514 2)
Non-cash increase in net debt (39.8) (55 7)
Total iIncrease in net debt {233.0) (569 9)
Opening net debt (5,316 4) (4,746 5)
Closing net debt 7 (5,549.4) (5,316 4)

Non-cash increase in net debt comprises amortisation of bond fees and the carrying value accretion
by RPI, of a number of RP| index-linked bonds and swaps This adjustment for RP| index-linked
bonds and swaps 1S In accordance with FRS 4 'Capital instruments’, which requires the carrying
value of such index-linked loans to be recalculated at each balance sheet date
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1

(@)

(i)

Current cost accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with guidance i1ssued by the
Water Services Regulation Authonty for modified real term financial statements suitable for
regulation in the water industry They measure profitability on the basis of real financial capital
maintenance, In the context of which assets are valued at ther current cost value to the
business

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines (RAG) In respect of cost allocations, the Company has continued to
allocate costs by cost centre as in previous years rather than on an activity based method,
which 1s the preferred system under RAG 3

The pnincipal current cost accounting policies used are the same as those adopted in the
regulatory historical cost financial statements, except as set out below

Changes to accounting policies

The same accounting policles used for the year ended 31 March 2009 have been applied in
these financial statements except as noted below

Valuation bases for determining the current cost of fixed assets
Review of asset valuations

The Company undertook a review of the “modem equivalent asset” (MEA) values at 31 March
1998 as one aspect of the 1999 Penodic Review This involved a comprehensive review of the
asset stock at the time, as well as the umit costs undeminning the valuations The Company
has, on an ongoing basis, recogmised improved information regarding the physical asset stock
All such changes are on a basis consistent with the valuations established in the 1999 review

In accordance with Ofwat's General Guidance Note the revised MEA revaluation method has
not been adopted in these cumrent cost accounts The revised revaluation method will be
adopted in next year's MEA values

Tangible fixed assets

The assets have been valued In accordance with RAG 1 04, on an MEA basis Depreciation is
charged over the estimated remaining economic life of the asset Infrastructure assets are not
depreciated

Additions during the year are taken at ther histoncal cost values Disposals are stated at the
value of the replacement assets

. Land and buildings

Non-specialised operational properties are valued on the basis of estimated open market value
for existing use at 31 March 1991, indexed since that date by the movement in the RPI, except
for certain properties which have been valued at 31 March 1995 by professionally qualified
employees of the Company

Specialised operational properties acquired since 31 March 1990 are valued at the lower of

depreciated replacement cost and recoverable amount, restated annually, between pericdic
reviews of replacement costs, by adjusting for inflation as measured by changes in the RPI
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(@)

(b)

(i)

(iif)

()

Valuation bases for determining the current cost of fixed assets (continued)

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

. Infrastructure assets

Mains, sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservorrs, and sludge pipelines are
stated at therr MEA (see page 100) value, in 2 manner as described above Due to the nature
of these assets, the MEA value I1s calculated based on the length of sewer or pipe, or the
capacity of the asset

Following the repeal of Section 24 of the Public Health Act 1936 by the Water Act 1989, the
Company assumed responsibility for the mantenance and operation of a significant length of
additional sewers The Company has estmated the length of these pipes in order to include
therr asset values In these accounts The value 1s £5,891m (2009 £5,640m) based upon a pipe
length of 19,000km (2009 19,000km) Adjustments may be required to those estimates n
future years as more accurate information becomes available

. Specialised/non-specialised assets

Specialised operational assets include those assets, used routinely in operating the business,
which are directty attnbutable to water supply or sewerage services

Non-specialised assets are those assets used routinely within the business, which cannot be
directly attrbuted to either part of the business

. Surplus land

Surplus land 15 valued at recoverable amounts less, where approprate, that part of any
proceeds to be passed on to customers under Condition B of the Licence

Capital contnbutions

All third party captal contnbutions received since 31 March 1990 are carned forward as
deferred income to the extent that any balance has not been credited to revenue, or deducted
from net operating assets n the case of infrastructure assets The balance carred forward 1s
restated for the change in the RPI for the year

Real finance capital maintenance adjustments

The following adjustrments are made to historical cost profit in order to amive at profit after the
maintenance of financial capital in real terms

Depreciation adjustment - this 1s the difference between depreciation based on the cumrent
cost value of assets in these financial statements and depreciation charged in amrving at
historical cost profit

Working capital adjustment - this 1s calculated by applying the change in the RPI over the
year to the working capital of the Company at the beginning of the year
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(b) Real finance capital maintenance adjustments {continued)

(i) Disposal of fixed assets adjustment - this 15 the difference between the book values of
realised assets in the current cost financial statements and n the histoncal cost financial
statements

(v} Financing adjustment - this is calculated by applying the change in the RPI over the year to
the opening balance of net finance, which comprises all monetary assets and habiities in the
balance sheet apart from those included in working capital, but excluding index rate inked debt
and the deferred tax provision

{c) Operating costs
In note 3, direct costs incurred with associated companies are less than 20% of the total
operating costs of the business before interest and tax Therefore the costs have been allocated
across the appropriate headings in accordance with RAG 3
2 Analysis of turnover, operating income and working capital adjustment
for the appointed business
2010 2009
Water Sewerage Appoinied Water Sewerage Appointed
supply services  business supply services business
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover
Unmeasured 4530 4409 8939 4426 4336 8762
Measured 3152 2966 6118 20286 272 4 565 0
Trade effluent - 61 61 - 57 57
Large user and special agreement Jos 257 565 359 264 623
Rechargeable works 29 80 89 13 83 96
Bulk supphesfinter-company payments 29 00 29 28 - 28
Other appointed business {third party) - - - - - -
Third party services (ex¢l non-potable water) 58 60 18 41 B3 124
Other sources 56 74 130 84 70 154
Total turnover 810.4 7827 15931 7838 753 4 1,537 0
Operating income
Current cost profit on disposal fixed assets 33.8 38 76 67 11 78
Working capital adjustment
Working capital adjustment 086 06 12 43 41 84
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3(a)
March 2010)

Direct costs

Employment costs

Power

Hired and contracted services
Materials and consumables
Service charges

Bulk supply imports

Other direct costs

Total direct costs

General & support expenditure
Total funchional expenditure

Business activities
Customer services
Scientific services

Other business activiies
Business activities sub-total

Local authonty rates
Doubfful debts
Exceptional items

Total opex less third party services

Third party services - opex
Total operating expenditure

Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charges
Current cost depreciation

- service activities

- business activities
Amortisation of grants

Total capital maintenance

Total operating costs

CCA (MEA) values
Services activities
Business activittes
Service totals

Operating costs and associated fixed asset book values (year ended 31

84

84

12,029 4

Water supply Sewerage services
Resource Distnbution Water Sewerage Sewage Sludge  Sewerage
& supply treatment  treatment service
treatment total & disposal total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
110 199 309 76 170 65 311
139 284 42 3 79 239 31 349
58 596 654 291 224 327 842
70 02 72 09 61 77 147
14 2 - 142 10 38 - 48
05 - 05 - - - -
08 29 37 10 03 02 15
532 1110 164 2 475 735 502 1712
126 513 639 114 82 60 256
658 162 3 228 1 58 9 817 56 2 196 8
359 374
45 13
40 40
44 4 427
247 296
183 16 2
3155 2853
14 26
316 9 2879
22 698 720 420 - - 420
820 610 1430 284 1139 448 187 1
08 09
{16) 47
2142 2253
5311 513.2
27295 92915 12,0210 355729 12,5962 6840 38,8531
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3(b) Operating costs and associated fixed asset book values (year ended 31

March 2009)

Direct costs

Employment costs

Power

Hired and contracted services
Matenals and consumables
Service charges

Bulk supply imports

Other direct costs

Total direct costs

General & support expenditure
Total functional expendiure

Business activities
Customer services
Scientific services

Other business activities
Business activities sub-total

Local authonty rates
Doubtful debts
Exceptional items

Total opex less third party services

Third party services - opex
Total operating expenditure

Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charges
Current cost depreciation

- service activities

- business activities
Amortisation of grants

Total capital maintenance

Total operating costs

CCA (MEA) values
Services activities
Business activities
Service totals

85

Water supply Sewerage services
Distnbution Sewerage Sewage
Resource Water treatment Sludge  Seweragt
& supply treatment Servict
treatment total & disposal tota
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
130 197 327 63 137 67 267
120 288 408 86 238 53 377
32 691 723 295 213 319 827
81 13 94 04 61 56 121
32 - 32 12 35 - 47
01 - 01 - - - -
- 09 09 11 - 04 15
396 1198 1594 47 1 684 499 165 4
139 52 4 66 3 113 86 65 264
835 1722 2257 58 4 770 56 4 191 8
289 311
41 11
41 41
381 363
238 285
182 175
48 18 2
3106 292 3
32 31
3138 2954
58 66 2 720 420 - - 420
840 570 1410 263 108 5 43 4 178 2
22 27
(2 8) (49
2124 2180
526.2 5134
24597 89829 11,4426 342299 24653 6425 37,3377
137 14 9
11,456.3 37,3526
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4 (a) Current Cost Analysis of Fixed Assets by Asset Type as at 31 March

2010
Water Services
Non-
Specialised speciahsed Other
operational operational Infrastructure tangible
assets properties assets  assels Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Gross replacement cost
At 1 April 2009 40323 530 9,208 2 169 2 13,4627
RPI adjustment 1793 24 4097 786 599 0
Disposals (34 8) (0 5) * {128 4) (37 2) {200 9)
Additions 117 5 15 2404 59 4 4188
At 31 March 2010 4,294.3 56.4 9,729.9 199 0 14,27%.6
Depreciation
At 1 April 2009 183956 24 2 - 1427 2,006 4
RPI adjustment 818 11 - 64 893
Disposals (33 8) {0 5) - (37 2) (71 5)
Charge for year 90 6 12 - 520 143 8
At 31 March 2010 1,978.1 260 - 163.9 2,168.0
Net book value
At 31 March 2010 2,316 2 304 9,7299 351 12,111.6
At 31 March 2008 2,192 8 288 9,208 2 265 11,456 3

* Note The disposal of £128 4m (2009 £188 2m) of infrastructure assets, shown above, relates to the
MEA value of the length of main abandoned in 2009 as a result of the Victonan mans replacement
programme. The corresponding entry, shown in note 6 1s against the current cost reserve
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4 (b) Current Cost Analysis of Fixed Assets by Asset Type as at 31 March

2010
Sewerage Services
Non-
Specialised specialised Other
operational operational Infrastructure tangible
assets properties assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Gross replacement cost
At 1 April 2009 6,774 3 431 33,4151 2576 40,450 1
RPI adjustment 3014 18 1,486 6 114 1,801 2
Disposals (82 5) (05) - (23 1) (106 1)
Additions 146 8 09 1313 250 3040
At 31 March 2010 7,140.0 45.3 35,033.0 270.9 42,489.2
Depraciation
At 1 April 2009 2,8813 278 - 228 4 3,1375
RPI adjustment 128 6 08 - 102 1396
Disposals (81 1) (0 5) - (23 2) {104 8)
Charge for year 164 5 10 - 225 188 0
At 31 March 2010 3,093.3 291 - 237.9 33603
Net book value
At 31 March 2010 4,046 7 16.2 35,0330 33.0 39,1289
At 31 March 2009 3,8930 153 334151 292 37,3526
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4(c) Current Cost Analysis of Fixed Assets by Asset Type at 31 March
2010
Total
Non-
Specialised specialised Other
operational operational Infrastructure tangible
assets properties assets assots Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnil 2009 10,806 6 96 1 42,6233 426 8 53,952 8
RPI adjustment 4807 42 1,896 3 190 2,4002
Disposals (117 3) (10) * (128 4) {60 3) (307 0)
Addrtions 264 3 24 3717 84 4 7228
At 31 March 2010 11,434 3 101.7 44,762.9 469.9 56,768.8
Depreciation
At 1 Aprl 2009 47208 520 - 3711 5,143 9
RPI adjustment 2104 19 - 166 228 9
Disposals (114 9) (10) - {60 4) {176 3)
Charge for year 255 1 22 - 745 3318
At 31 March 2010 5,071.4 55.1 - 401 8 5,528.3
Net book value
At 31 March 2010 6,362.9 46 6 44,7629 68.1 51,240.5
At 31 March 2009 6,0858 441 42,6233 557 48,808 9

* Please see the note to table 4a in respect of the infrastructure assets disposal value
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Thames Water Utilities Limited
Regulatory accounts and required regulatory information

Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements for the
year ended 31 March (continued)

5 Current cost working capital
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£m £m
Stocks 7.7 61
Trade debtors
- Measured household 683 566
- Unmeasured household 115.5 97 4
- Measured non-household 44.1 421
- Unmeasured non-household 17 20
- Other 12.9 103
Measured income accrual 141.4 1297
Prepayments and other debtors 44.3 344
Trade creditors (247.1) (179 6)
Deferred income — customer advance receipts (88.7) (98 8)
Capital creditors (201.6) (207 9)
Accruals and other creditors (161.0}) {149 7)
Total working capital (262.5) (257 4)
6 Movement on current cost reserve
2010 2009
£m £m
Balance at 1 April 42,095.5 425334
RPI adjustments
- Fixed assets 2,188.0 (183 4)
- Working capital (1.2) (B 4)
- Financing {11.0) (63 5)
- Grant and third party contributions {32.4) (50)
- Mains replacement adjustment (see note 4a) (128.4) (188 2)
- Other - 06
Balance at 31 March 44,110.5 42,0955
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Regulatory accounts and required regulatory information

Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements for the
year ended 31 March (continued)

7 Net debt analysis

March 2010’

Interest rate risk profile

Fixed rate  Floating rate Index linked Total
£m £m £m £m
Maturity profile
Less than one year (345 6) (207 4) - (553 0)
Between one and two years 48) 85 - {13 3)
Between two and five years (359 1) {349 3) - (708 4)
Between five and twenty years {1,366 8) (182 4) (516 Q) (2,065 2)
In more than twenty years (933 5) - (1,855 1) (2,788 6)
Total borrowings {3,009 8) (747 6) (2,371 1) (6 128 5)
Cash 59 - - 59
Short term deposits 5732 - - 5732
Net debt {2,430 7) (747 6) {2,371.1) (5 549.4)
March 2009.
Interest rate risk profile
Fixed rate  Floating rate Index linked Total
£m £m £m £m
Maturity profile
Less than one year (275 8) {83 2) - {359 0)
Between one and two years (345 9) (57 4) - {403 3)
Between two and five years (339 8) (235 0) - (574 8)
Between five and twenty years {1,406 2) (194 7) {214 8) (1,815 7)
In more than twenty years {1,044 0) - {1,645 4) (2,689 4)
Total borrowings (3411 7) (570 3) (1,860 2) (5,842 2)
Cash 204 2 - - 204 2
Short term deposits 3216 - - 3216
Net debt (2,885.9) (570.3) {1,860.2) (5,316.4)

All values in the above tables are post interest and cross currency rate swaps
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Supplementary regulatory information for the year ended 31 March
2009

Rolling five-year summary

Regulatory current cost profit and loss account for the Appointed business for the year
ended 31 March 2010 with corresponding amounts for prior periods (at 2010 prices)

2010 2009 2008 * 2007 * 2006 *

£m £m £m £m £m

Turnover 1,593.1 1644 2 1,504 6 14930 15102
Current cost operating costs {1,044.3) (1,044 4) (1,0572) (1,15638) (1,094 1)
Operating income 37.6 78 258 81 103
Working capital adjustment 1.2 84 81 68 51
Current cost operating profit 587 6 516 4813 3541 4315
Net interest (255.2) (179 7) (177 4) (1826) (161 3)
Financing adjustment 11.0 537 992 1329 1015
Current cost profit on ordinary 3434 3900 403 1 304 4 3717
activities before taxation
Taxation

- Current tax {42.1) (23 9) (1119) (56 4) (80 3)

- Deferred tax {75.1) {94 2) 735 (25 0) {290 4)
Current cost profit on ordinary 226.2 2719 3647 2230 2620
activities after taxation
Dividends {281.2) (216 1) (100 9) (566 3) (3020
Current cost {loss)/profit retained (55 0) 558 263 8 (343 3) (40 0)

Corresponding amounts have been stated at current year prices using movements in the average RPI

* Current cost operating costs in 2008, 2007 and 2006 (restated) include the reclassification of active
leakage costs from capital to operating costs and in 2008 and 2007 the treatment of income from energy
generation and the national gnd reserve, which 1s now Included in current cost operating cost for the
appointed business
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Supplementary regulatory information for the year ended 31 March

2009 {(continued)

Rolling five-year summary

Regulatory current cost balance sheet for the appointed business at 31 March 2010 with
corresponding amounts for prior peniods {(at 2010 prices)

2010 2009 2008 * 2007 ¢ 2006 *
£m £m fm £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 51,2405 509802 5806176 50,3679 50,094 2
Third party contnibutions since 31 (934 9) 911 1) (8927) (853 9) {810 6)
March 1990
50,3056 50,069 1 49,7249 495140 49,2836
Waorking capital {262.5) {268 8) {293 9) (2211) (149 3)
Cash 59 2133 685 96 6 136
Short term deposits 573.2 3359 162 1214 -
Infrastructure renewals prepayment
H{accrual) (9.0) 35,2 382 {352) (44 7)
Net operating assets 50,613.2 50,3847 49,5539 494757 491032
Non operating assets and liabilities
Borrowings (553.0) (375 0) (381 2) {(229) (4491)
Non-trade debtors 157.9 2223 955 795 1165
Non-trade creditors due wathin one (78 5) (121 0) (108 8) (94 0) (85 6)
year
Investment - loan to group company 1,180.0 1,232 5 1,273 4 - -
Investments — other 0.1 01 01 01 01
Corporation tax receivable/(payable) 13.0 12 4 (8 0) - (36 3)
Total non operating assets and 719.5 9713 8710 (373 (455 4)
liabilities
Creditors amounts falling due after
more than one year
Borrowings {5,5755) (57271} (4,6425) (3,6892) (2,5219)
Qther creditors (77 3) (38 1) (25 8) - -
Total creditors falling due after more {5,652.8) (57652) {4,6683) (3,6892) (2,5219)
than one year
Provisions for liabilities and
charges
Deferred tax provision (995 5) (967 5) {875 5) (9897) (1,0122)
Post employment (liability)/asset (107 4) (45 0) 272 120 {29 8)
Other provisions (102 8) (89 4) (819) (76 2) {69 3)
Total provisions {(1,2057) (1,1059) {9302) (1,0539) (1,111 3)
Net assets 44,474.2 444849 44,8264 446953 450146
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1,029.0 1,074 8 1,0707 1,111 1 1,164 7
Share premium 100.0 104 4 104 1 108 0 1131
Profit and toss account {765.3) (662 5) (6181) (9197) (6390)
Current cost reserve 44,110.5 43,968 2 442697 44,3959 443758
Total capital and reserves
44,474.2 444849 44,8264 446953 450146

Corresponding amounts have been stated at cument year prices using movements in the year-end RPI

* Current cost operating costs in 2008, 2007 and 2006 (restated) include the reclassification of insurance
liabilities from non-trade creditors to other provisions
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2009 (continued)

Regulatory Capital Value (RCV)

2010

£m

Opening RCV (March 2009 prices) 7,180
Indexation to year end (March 2010 pnces) 319
Opening RCV at year end prices 7,499
Capital expenditure (excluding infrastructure renewals expenditure) 670
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 125
Grants and contributions (44)
Depreciation (374)
Infrastructure renewals charge (108)
Out performance of past regulatory assumptions (47)
Closing RCV (March 2010) 7,721
Average RCV (2009/2010 year average prices) 7,441

The figures quoted reflect those used by Ofwat at the 2004 Periodic Review to set prices for
2009/2010, as published by Ofwat in RD 09/10 All costs have been indexed to March 2010 prices
(RPI index) except for the average RCV, which 1s shown at year average prnices (RPI index) in
accordance with Ofwat’s convention

Differences between the figures shown above and actual costs/income will not affect price imits in

the current period Capital efficiencies will be taken into account in the calculation for the next price
review

RAG 5 Intra-group trade

During the year there were no contracts in excess of 0 5% (£8 1m) of the Company’s turnover with
any subsidiary of the Thames Water group of companies

To the best of the directors’ knowledge, all appropriate transactions with associated companies have
been disclosed
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RAG 5 Directors’ interests information

Listed below are detals of directorships held by Thames Water Utiities Limited directors at 31 March
2010 n associated companies that have fraded with the regulated business during the year

Directorships held in Associated Companies

The following directors held directorships in Thames Water Limited and Thames Water Utilities Holdings
Limited

Sir Peter Mason KBE — Chairman

L F Abraira (appointed 1 January 2010)
M W Baggs

E Beckley

R Blomfield-Smith

C R Deacon

S Kolenc (resigned 1 January 2010)

K Roseke (appointed 1 January 2010)
A F C DeP Santos (restgned 1 January 2010)
D J Shah

M S W Stanley

The following directors have formally appointed alternate directors to represent them when they are
unavailable These alternate directors also held alternate directorships in Thames Water Limited and
Thames Water Utlites Holdings Limited

Director Alternate Director
L F Abraira {appointed 1 January 2010) P Gomez {(appointed 1 January 2010,
resigned 31 March 2010)
D Mora (appointed 31 March 2010)

R Biomfield-Srmith K Boesenberg (appointed 1 Apnl 2009)

S Kolenc (resigned 1 January 2010) L Webb (resigned 1 January 2010)

C R Deacon R D israel

K Roseke {appointed 1 January 2010) S Kolenc (appointed 1 January 2010)

A F C DeP Santos (resigned 1 January 2010) S Batey (resigned 1 January 2010)

D J Shah C van Heyringen (resigned 1 January 2010)

R Vermon {(appointed 1 January 2010)

Thames Water Utilities Limited conducts its appointed business so as to ensure arm'’s length trading and
avoidance of cross-subsidy in the spinit of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment

No directorships are held by Thames Water Utilities Limited directors in circumstances, which, might, in
practice, result in conflicts of interest in intra-group trading relationships
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Directors’ Certificate under Condition F6A of the Company’s
Appointment

This 1s to certify that at their meeting on 10 June 2010 the directors of Thames Water Utiities Limited
(“the Appointee”) resolved as follows

That, in the opinion of the directors’, the Appaintee will have available to it sufficient financial
resources and faciities to enable it to carry out, for at least the next 12 months, the
Regulated Activities (including the investment programme necessary to fulfil the Appointee’s
obligations under the Appointment(s))

That, in the opinion of the directors’, the Appointee will, for at least the next 12 months, have
available to it

(a) Management resources
(b) Systems of planning and internal control

Which are sufficient to enabte 1t to carry out those functions as required by sub-paragraph
6A 1(1)

That, in the opinion of the directors’, all contracts entered into with any associated company
include all necessary provisions and requirements concerning the standard of service to be
suppled to the Appointee, to ensure that it 1s able to meet all its obligations as a water and a
sewerage undertaker

The man factors the director's have taken into account in compliance with the Directors’ Certificate
under condition F6A of the Company’s appointment are

That the processes and systems of internal control operated as expected

That the Appointee operated as If it were substantially the Appointee’s sole business and
that the Appointee were a separate public imited Company

That financial resources and facilities are adequate to enable the Appointee to meet its
regulatory obligations

The net worth of the Company and the strength of the Company's key performance
indicators as shown on pages 5 and 8 of the Chief Executive Officer’s Business review

The strong investment grade ratings as shown on page 7 of the Chief Executive Officer's
Business review

Borrowing facilities, which include significant, undrawn bank facilities

Parental support provided by the ultimate holding company, which will provide financial
support

M Braithwaite
Chief Financial Officer
10 June 2010
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KPMG Audit Ple
8 Salisbury Square
Lonton E14 5AG
United Kingdom

Independent Auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation
Authority and the Directors of Thames Water Utilities Limited

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of Thames Water Utiities Limited (“the Company”} on
pages 66 to 95 which comprise

e The regulatory historical cost accounting statements comprising the regulatory histonical cost
profit and loss account, the regulatory historical cost balance sheet, the regulatory historical
cost statement of total recognised gains and losses and the historical cost reconciiation
between statutory and regulatory accounts

« The reguiatory current cost accounting statements for the appointed business comprising the
current cost profit and loss account, the current cost balance sheet, the current cost cash flow
statement and the related notes to the current cost financial statements including the
statement of accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s Condition F of the
Appointment and the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, the accounting policies set out In the
statement of accounting policies and, In the case of the regulatory historical cost accounting
statements, under the historical cost convention

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory financial statements of the Company There
are differences between UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practices ("UK GAAP"} and the basis of
preparation of information provided in the Regulatory Accounts because the Regulatery Accounting
Guidelines specify alternative treatment or disclosure In certan respects Where the Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines do not specifically address an accounting issue, then they require UK GAAP to
be followed Financial information other than that prepared on the basis of an acceptable financial
reporting framework, such as UK GAAP does not necessarnly represent a true and fair view of the
financial performance or financial position of a company as shown n financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made, on terms that have been agreed, solely to the Company and the Water Services
Regulation Authority (“the WSRA”) in order to meet the requirements of Condition F of the Instrument
of Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the Environment to the Company as a water and
sewage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1891 (“the Regulatory Licence") Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Company and the WSRA those matters that we have
agreed to state to them in our report, in order (@) to assist the Company to meet its obligation under
the Regulatory Licence to procure such a report and (b) to facilitate the carrying out by the WSRA of
its regulatory functions, and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the WSRA, for our audit work,
for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the WSRA, the Directors and Auditors

The nature, form and content of Regulatory Accounts are determined by the WSRA It 1s not
appropnate for us to assess whether the nature of the information being reported upon 1s suitable or
appropriate for the WSRA's purposes Accordingly we make no assessment

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Regulatory Accounts in accordance with Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities for regulatory
information on page 65
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independent Auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation
Authority and the Directors of Thames Water Utilities Limited
(continued)

Our responsibility 1s to audit the Regulatory Accounts in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board, except as stated in the “Basis of
audit of the Regulatory Accounts” below, and having regard to the guidance contained in Audit 05/03
“Reporting to Regulators of Regulated Entities” International Standards on Audiing (UK and lreland)
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory Accounts
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or errar  This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's circumstances and have been consistently
apphied and adequately disclosed, and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the directors In view of the purpose for which these Regulatory Accounts have been prepared,
however, we did not evaluate the overall adequacy of the presentation of the information which would
have been required If we were to express an audit opinion under International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland)

Our opimion on the Regulatory Accounts 1s separate from our opinion on the statutory financial
statements of the Company on which we report, which are prepared for a different purpose  Our audit
report In relation to the statutory accounts of the Company (our “Statutory” audit) was made solely to
the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our Statutory audit work was undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in a Statutory auditor’s report and for no other purpose
In these circumstances, to the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume any
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our
Statutory audit work, for our Statutory audit repert, or for the opinions we have formed in respect of
that Statutory audit

The regulatory historical cost accounting statements on pages 66 to 76 have been drawn up In
accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 in that infrastructure renewals accounting as
applied 1n previous years should continue to be applied and accordingly that the relevant sections of
Financial Reporting Standards 12 and 15 be disapplied The effect of this departure from UK GAAP,
and a reconcihation of the balance sheet drawn up on this basis with that drawn up under Companies
Act 2006 1s given on page 76

Opinion on the Regulatory Accounts

In our opinion the Regulatory Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010 farrly
present In accordance with Conditton F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the Secretary of
State for the Environment to the Company as a water and sewerage undertaker under the Water
Industry Act 1991, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by the WSRA and the accounting
policies set out on page 35 to 42, 69 to 70 and 81 to 83, the state of the Company’s affars at 31
March 2010 on an historical cost and current cost basis, the hustonical cost and current cost profit for
the year and the current cost cash flow for the year and have been properly prepared in accordance
with those conditions, guidelines and accounting policies

In respect of this iInformation we report that in our opinion

a) Proper accounting records have been kept by the appointee as required by paragraph 3 of
Condition F of the instrument
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Independent Auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation
Authority and the Directors of Thames Water Utilities Limited
(continued)

b) The information 1s in agreement with the appointee’s accounting records and has been
properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of Condition F and, as appropriate,
Regulatory Accounting Gudeline 1 04, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 2 03, Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4 03 1ssued by the WSRA

c) The regulatory histonical cost accounting statements on pages 66 to 76 present farrly, under
the histonical cost convention, the revenues and costs, assets and habiities of the appointee
and its appointed business in accordance with the Company's instrument of Appointment and
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 2 03, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory
Accounting Guidehne 4 03 1ssued by the WSRA

d) The regulatory current cost accounting statements on pages 77 to 80 have been properly
prepared in accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guidelne 1 04, Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4 03 1ssued by the WSRA

Chartered Accountants
London
1@ June 2010
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Glossary of regulatory terms

AMP adjustment — The revision in the real value of fixed assets ansing perodically from
improved information notably in the five-year Asset Management Plan process

Appointed Business — The appointed business comprises the regulated activities of the
Company which are activittes necessary in order for a company to fulfii the funchon and
duties of a water and sewerage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991

Arm’s-length trading — Arm’s-length trading 1s where the Company treats the associate
companies on the same hasis as external third parties

Asset Management Plan (AMP) — A plan agreed with Ofwat on a five-yearly basis for the
management of water and wastewater assets The plan runs for a five-year period AMP3
covered the investment period April 2000 to March 2005 AMP4 covers the investment period
April 2005 to March 2010

Associate company — Condition A of the Licence defines an associate company to be any
group or related company Condition F of the Licence requires all transactions between the
Company and its associated companies to be disclosed subject to specified matenality
considerations

Capital Incentive Scheme (“CIS”) - This will be the new capital expenditure incentive
mechanism introduced by Ofwat to take effect n AMP § Under this mechanism Ofwat sets a
baseline capital expenditure plan, which they believe companies should be able to deliver
Companies are rewarded or penalised dunng the AMP 5 for submitting a business plan,
which 15 lower or higher than the baseline respectively Companies will then be further
rewarded or penalised at the start of AMP6 for underspending or overspending against that
business plan

CIS will apply to capital expenditure only, not to operational expenditure and will not apply to
large projects such as the Lee Tunnel

Final determination — Thrs 1s the conclusion of discussions ¢n the scale and content of the
asset management plan for the forthcoming five-year perniod It 1s accompanied by a
determination of the allowable ‘K’ factor for the forthcoming five-year period

Financing adjustment — The impact of general inflation {RPI) on the real value of net finance
for the business

K factor — The annual increase, set by Ofwat, in charges that compantes in the water industry
can make The amount by which a company can increase (or must decrease) its charges 1s
controlled by the price hmit formula RPI + or — 'K' + ‘U’ RPI 1s expressed as the percentage
increase In the Retall Price Index in the year to November before the charging year ‘K' 1s a
number determined by Ofwat for each company, usually at a prnice review, for each year to
reflect what it needs above or below inflation in order to finance the provision of services to
customers and ‘U’ 1s the amount of ‘K’ not taken up by a company in previous years

Licence ~ The Instrument of Appomntment dated August 1989 under Section 11 and 14 of the
Water Act 1989 (as in effect on 1 August 1989) under which the Secretary of State for the
Environment appointed Thames Water Utilities Limited as a water and sewerage undertaker
under the Act for the areas descnbed in the Instrument of Appointment, as modified or
amended from time to time
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Glossary of regulatory terms (continued)

Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) — The cost of an asset of equivalent productive capability
to satisfy the remaining service potential of the asset being valued If the asset would be worth
replacing, or the recoverable amount If it would not The gross MEA value 1s what 1t would
cost to replace an old asset with a technically up to date new asset with the same service
capability allowing for any difference both in the quality of output and in operating costs The
net MEA value 1s the depreciated value taking into account the remaining service potential of
an old asset compared with a new asset, and 1s stated gross of third-party contributions

Monitoring plan — The document required by Ofwat after the cutcome of a price review that
sets out annual targets for delivery against the Final Determination The June Return is the
annual submission to Ofwat that allows the regulator to track progress aganst the Monitoring
Plan

Non-appointed business — The non-appointed business activities of the Company are
activities for which the Company as a water and sewerage undertaker 15 not a monopoly
supplier (for example, the sale of laboratory services to an external orgamisation) or involves
the optional use of an asset owned by the Company (for example, the use of underground
assets for cable television)

Ofwat — The name used to refer to the Water Services Regulation Authority (WSRA) The
WSRA acts as the economic regulator of the water industry

Ovarall Performance Assessment (*OPA”) - This 1s the measure used by Ofwat to
assess the performance of water only and water and sewerage companies within the
industry. Ofwat uses a scoring system, up to a maximum of 437.5 whereby it
compares companies performance across the industry.

Periodic Reviaw (PR} - The price determination process undertaken by Ofwat every five
years Each water and sewerage undertaker submits an Asset Management Plan covering
the five-year period for which Ofwat will determine prices (the K factor ~ see above)

Price limit — This 1s the name given to the combination of the Retall Pnce Index (RPI), ‘K’ and
IUI

Regulatory Accounting Guidelines (RAG) — The accounting guidelines for regulatory
accounts 1ssued, and amended from time to time, by Ofwat

Retail Price Index (RPI) — The RPI 1s compiled and published monthly by the Office for
National Statistics RPI 1s an average measure of change in the prices of goods and services
bought for the purpose of consumption by the vast majonty of households in the United
Kingdom

Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) — The capital base used in setting price imits The value of
the appointed business that earns a return on nvestment It represents the initial market
value (200-day average), including debt at privatisation, plus subsequent net new capital
expenditure including new obligations imposed since 1989 The capital value I1s calculated
using the Ofwat methodology (1 e after current cost depreciation and infrastructure renewals
accrual)
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Glossary of regulatory terms (continued)

Third-party contributions since 1989/90 — Grants and third-party contributions receved Iin
respect of infrastructure assets and any deferred income relating to grants and third-party
contributions for non-infrastructure assets

Working capital — The aggregate of stocks, trade debtors and trade creditors, if material

Working capital adjustment — The impact of general inflation (RPI} on the real value of
working capital to the business
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